
 

 
Addenbrooke House   Ironmasters Way    Telford   TF3 4NT 

 

Continued… 

CABINET 

 

Date Thursday, 5 November 2020 Time 10.00 am 

Venue Remote Meeting 

 

Enquiries Regarding this Agenda 

Democratic Services Stacey Worthington 01952 384382 

Media Enquiries Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

Lead Officer David Sidaway, Chief Executive 01952 380130 

 
Cabinet Members: Councillor R A Overton Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 

Enforcement, Community Safety and 
Customer Services 

 Councillor A J Burford Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care 

 Councillor E M Callear Cabinet Member for Leisure, Libraries and 
Culture 

 Councillor L D Carter Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood, 
Commercial Services and Regeneration 

 Councillor R C Evans Cabinet Member for Council Finance and 
Governance 

 Councillor C Healy Cabinet Member for Visitor Economy, 
Historic & Natural Environment and 
Climate Change 

 Councillor S A W Reynolds Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People, Education and Lifelong Learning 

 Councillor P Watling Cabinet Member for Cooperative 
Communities, Engagement and 
Partnerships 

 Councillor D Wright Cabinet Member for Economy, Housing, 
Transport and Infrastructure 

 Councillor S Davies Leader 
   
Invitees: Councillor W L Tomlinson Liberal Democrats 

 Councillor N A Dugmore Conservative 

 

AGENDA 
Page 

   
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

  

   
 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

   3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  3 - 6 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

  
Key  
 

4.   Financial Management Report 2020/21 
 

Cllr R C Evans 7 - 32 

Key  
 

5.   Housing Investment Programme - 
Business Case for Investment 
 

Cllr D Wright 
Cllr L D Carter 

33 - 98 

Key  
 

6.   Get Building Fund - Stronger 
Communities - New College, Wellington 
 

Cllr D Wright 99 - 106 

  

 
FILMING, RECORDING & PHOTOGRAPHY 
The Council supports the principle of transparency and encourages filming, recording and taking 
photographs at its meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social 
networking websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) and micro-blogging to communicate with 
people about what is happening, as it happens. 
There is no requirement to notify the Council in advance, but it should be noted that the Chairman 
of the meeting will have absolute discretion to terminate or suspend any of these activities if, in 
their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting. Full details of the 
Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at meetings can be accessed via the 
following link: 
http://www.telford.gov.uk/info/20243/council_meetings/365/filming_photography_recording_and_u
se_of_social_networking_at_meetings 

Page 2

http://www.telford.gov.uk/info/20243/council_meetings/365/filming_photography_recording_and_use_of_social_networking_at_meetings
http://www.telford.gov.uk/info/20243/council_meetings/365/filming_photography_recording_and_use_of_social_networking_at_meetings


 

 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held on Thursday, 8 October 2020 at 

10.00 am in Remote Meeting 
 

PUBLISHED ON WEDNESDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2020 
 

(DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: MONDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2020) 
 

 
Present: Councillors S Davies (Chair), R A Overton (Vice-Chair), A J Burford, 
E M Callear, L D Carter, R C Evans, C Healy, S A W Reynolds, P Watling and 
D Wright.  
 
Also Present:  Cllr W L Tomlinson (Liberal Democrats / Independent 
Group Leader) and Cllr N A Dugmore (Conservative Group Leader) 
 
CAB-24 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
CAB-25 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
CAB-26 Leader's Announcements 
 
The Leader noted that rates of COVID-19 infections had significantly 
increased in the Borough over the last few weeks, although the Borough was 
still below the national and regional averages. The Leader advised that the 
implementation of a new traffic light system for local interventions had been 
delayed by Government and he urged the government to work with all Local 
Authorities. The Leader thanked residents for playing their part in keeping the 
infection rates in the Borough lower than the national average. 
 

The Leader welcomed the new Leader of the Conservative Group, Cllr Nigel 
Dugmore, to Cabinet. 
 
CAB-27 Council Plan 
 
The Leader presented the report which outlined the Council’s commitment to 
‘Protect, Care & Invest to Create a Better Borough’. As part of its election 
manifesto, the administration had identified a number of commitments, of 
which over 90% had so far been delivered including: 
 

 Investment of £80m per year to protect the most vulnerable adults and 
children, which included the achievement of Outstanding OFSTED 
judgments for safeguarding children services and the Shared Lives 
service. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 Investment of £50m in roads and footpaths 

 Work to address health inequalities. 
 
It was noted that a cross cutting theme was to continue to support businesses 
and the community recover from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Cabinet Members commended the plan, noting the significant impact the 
pandemic had had on the economy and community. Members welcomed the 
partnership working that had taken place and the investment that had 
occurred. 
 
The Leader of the Conservative Group noted the achievements but stated 
there needed to be a focus on where the plan was going rather than where it 
had been. The Leader of the Liberal Democrat / Independent Group 
welcomed the plan. 
 
RESOLVED that the new Council Plan ‘Protect, Care & Invest to Create a 
Better Borough 2020 and onwards’ be approved.  
 
CAB-28 Reducing Single Use Plastics in Telford & Wrekin 
 
The Cabinet Member for Visitor Economy, Historic & Natural Environment and 
Climate Change presented the report which provided an update on the 
progress that had been made towards fulfilling the Council’s commitment to 
phase out single use plastics by 2023. Many of the actions from the plan had 
been completed, however, some had been delayed due to the COVID-19 
pandemic.  
 

The report highlighted the achievements that had been made. There had been 
an increase in litter related to PPE during the pandemic and other single use 
plastics, such as those used in restaurants, had increased, however, when the 
time was right, the progress that had been made previously could be brought 
back. 
  
Cabinet Members welcomed the report and stated that work with partners, 
including schools and parish and town councils, was vital to reduce plastic use 
across the Borough as a whole.  
 
The Leader of the Liberal Democrat / Independent Group asked for 
clarification if all waste in the Borough was sent to be incinerated rather than 
to landfill and recycling was dealt with in the UK, which was confirmed to be 
the case. The Leader of the Conservative Group stated that he was fully 
supportive of the strategy. 
  
RESOLVED that: 
 

a) The progress to date with removing single-use plastics from the 
Council’s operations and activities and replacing them with 
sustainable alternatives as identified in Appendix 1 of the report 
be noted and the new actions focussing on the leadership and 

Page 4



 

 

engagement with the Community to work towards Telford and 
Wrekin’s Plastic Free Borough Status be approved; 
 

b) The reporting of single-use plastics in Telford & Wrekin as part of 
the Climate Change Becoming Carbon Neutral Action Plan which 
will be reported to Cabinet in February 2022 be approved. 

 
CAB-29 Referred Council Motion 
 
The Leader invited Cllr T J Nelson, as proposer of a motion that had been 
referred from the Full Council Meeting on 16 July 2020 to speak on that 
motion. The motion had been referred to Cabinet as it was a policy issue.  
 

Cllr Nelson stated that the COVID-19 pandemic shutdown had shown many 
people a new way of living and that many had rediscovered their own locality. 
There had been green benefits, emissions had plummeted and there had 
been an increase in homeworking. He stated that the new normal should be 
for the Borough to be more self-contained, and for residents to live more 
sustainable, green lives. 
 
Cllr Nelson stated that existing policy did not have a wide enough scope, for 
example, the transport policy should make use of the private, fossil fuel car 
redundant. Cllr Nelson urged Cabinet to widen the ambition. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Visitor Economy, Historic & Natural Environment and 
Climate Change agreed that, as well as helping residents to stay safe, many 
of the measures introduced during the pandemic had had a positive green 
impact. 
 
Boards had been set up with partners to take the Borough into a post-COVID 
world, these boards were looking at issues such as sustainable transport, 
investment in local high streets and enhancing green spaces. The carbon 
neutral plan was Council focused as it was a Council plan, however, a 
partnership group had been established to develop a plan for the Borough as 
a whole. 
 
The Cabinet Member stated that she did not feel a separate policy was 
needed as the Council was already engaged in similar work under existing 
policies.  
 
RESOLVED that the motion not be approved.   
 
 
CAB-30 Procurement Update 
 
The Cabinet Member for Council Finance and Governance presented the 
procurement update report. The report highlighted the work of officers in 
relation to the Procurement Policy Notice and supplier relief throughout the 
COVID pandemic. The Cabinet Member expressed her thanks to the 
procurement team for their work with the health and safety team to ensure the 

Page 5



 

 

procurement of the right PPE for staff and those who the Council supports in 
the Borough throughout the pandemic. The Council was now working to find 
local suppliers of PPE to reduce the environmental impact. 
 

In response to a question from the Leader of the Conservative Group, the 
Cabinet Member advised that electric vehicles would be considered in any 
future procurment. The Leader of the Liberal Democrat/ Independent Group 
expressed his thanks to the procurement team. 
 
The Leader noted that the Council had secured a large amount of PPE and, 
without this, other local partners would have run out of PPE.  
 
RESOLVED that: 

a) The procurement updates in this report be noted 
 

b) The Procurement Intentions Document (Attached as Appendix A 
to the report) be noted and where indicated, delegation to the 
appropriate officers (as per the Contract Procedure Rules) to 
progress new procurements through the tender process to 
contract award be approved.  

 
The meeting ended at 10.55 am 
 
Signed for the purposes of the Decision Notices 

 
Anthea Lowe 
Associate Director: Policy & Governance 
Date:  Wednesday, 14 OCTOBER 2020 
 

 
Signed  

 
Date: 

 
Thursday, 5 November 2020 

Page 6



 

1 

TELFORD & WREKIN COUNCIL 
 
CABINET – 5 NOVEMBER 2020 
FULL COUNCIL – 26 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
2020/21 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT  
 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: FINANCE & H.R. (CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER) 
 
LEAD CABINET MEMBER: CLLR RAE EVANS 

 
PART A) – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
1.0 SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 
  

 2020/21 Revenue 
 
The coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) is continuing to have a huge 
impact across the country.  The UK went into full-scale lockdown on 
March 23 in an unprecedented step to attempt to limit the spread of the 
disease.  The easing of lockdown commenced in May but our 
community and many Council services clearly continue to face 
significant, unprecedented impacts and uncertainties with consequent 
financial implications on the Council’s overall financial position.  
 
After more than a decade of severe financial constraint due to 
Government grant cuts and increasing demand for many Council 
services, the Council is now facing significant additional financial 
pressures as a result of Covid-19.  These pressures include increased 
costs, particularly relating to the provision of Social Care and 
safeguarding the most vulnerable in our community; the purchase of 
essential personal, protective equipment; income shortfalls relating to 
closed facilities and services; and projected income shortfalls in relation 
to Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates which are the key funding 
streams for the Council.  
 

The total projected pressure is currently estimated to be around 

£26.9m (including projected council tax and business rates shortfalls).  

The Council has received £15.2m of Government National Emergency 

Response Funding which leaves a residual pressure of £11.7m.  This is 

an improvement totalling £6.9m on the position reported to Cabinet in 

July as a result of considerable work by budget holders across the 

Council.  The main reasons for this improved position include:- 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

 £’000 

 

Additional funding received from Government since July 

Cabinet report prepared 

(5,052) 

Children’s Safeguarding - Lower projection for placement 

costs for children in care, Post 18 Staying Put and Leaving 

Care Support, and the cost of agency staff.  After this 

adjustment the additional investment required in to this 

service is £2.682m 

(1,356) 

Adult Social Care – various including lower projection for 

cost of care packages.  After this adjustment the additional 

investment required in to this service is £4.798m 

(765) 

Property Investment Portfolio (PIP) income projection 

updated   

(100) 

BIT – updated assumption relating to reduction in fee 

income 

(425) 

Updated assessment of Housing Benefit Subsidy position (238) 

Updated projections for Leisure income shortfalls +545 

Updated projections for Arthog lost income +389 

Other variations +91 

Total improvement in overall position since the July 

Cabinet report 

(6,911) 

 

The overall in-year pressure of £26.9m referred to above includes 
projected service pressures totalling £18.9m together with an estimate 
for potential reductions to council tax and business rates income this 
year of £8m.   This will result in a deficit balance carried forward to next 
year on the respective collection funds.  The Government have 
announced that this deficit could, on an exceptional basis, be 
recovered over a three year period (2021/22 – 2023/24) rather than as 
would normally be the case fully recovered next year.  However, it 
would be very desirable for the Council to make provision for this 
pressure during 2020/21 in order to avoid increasing the budget 
shortfall in future years given the very high level of uncertainty over 
future funding levels beyond March 2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This position is a significant improvement on that reported to cabinet in 
July.  Work is ongoing by both the finance team and service managers 
to update and refine financial projections as additional information 
becomes available and estimates will continue to be refined throughout 

Summary       £m 

Projected total pressure on service budgets 18.9 

add projected shortfalls relating to business rates 

and council tax   

8.0 

Total Pressure   26.9 

Emergency Grant received from Government (15.2) 

Net Pressure 11.7 

Page 8



 

3 

the remainder of the year.  It must be recognised that there are still 
many uncertainties in what is still a very dynamic environment and the 
projected position will fluctuate.  However, the Council has a long track-
record of actively managing its financial position and due to its strong 
financial management over recent years and currently remains in a 
strong financial position.  The above position does not include any 
assumed benefit from the Government’s sales fees and charges 
income compensation scheme or use of the in-year budget 
contingency.  £2m of the general contingency will remain available if 
the recommendations in this report are approved.   
   
In addition, officers and Cabinet Members are undertaking a rigorous 
review of all reserves and provisions held by the Council to identify 
additional one-off funding to offset the remaining in-year budget 
pressure which should avoid the need for in-year budget savings 
measures to be implemented.  A further report will be brought to 
Cabinet alongside the service and financial planning strategy in 
January seeking necessary approvals for this revised budget process 
when we will have further information to enable more accurate 
projections of the likely year end position to be made. 
 
Clearly, there are a number of significant variations from the approved 
budget.  As expected the majority of these relate to Covid-19: 
 

Children’s Safeguarding & Family Support – Children in 
Care Placement costs, such as additional children with 
complex needs coming into care and increased placement 
fees 

£1.213m 

Children’s Safeguarding & Family Support – additional 
staffing costs 

£0.455m 

Education & Skills – additional home to school transport 
costs (pre and post 16) 

£0.295m 

Adult Social Care – increased costs to support care 
providers and clients 
Adult Social Care – costs of short term reablement care 

£3.458m 
 

£2.911m 

Waste collection and treatment £0.350m 

Purchase of essential Personal, Protective Equipment £0.521m 

Housing Benefit – impact of suspending the recovery of 
overpayments 

£0.262m 

Homelessness prevention costs £0.399m 

Income losses, such as 
- Property Investment Portfolio - rental income 

shortfalls 
- Leisure income 
- Theatre 
- Car parking income 
- Catering income 
- Planning Fees 
- Arthog 
- My Options (Adults & Childrens) 

 
£2.029m 

 
£3.383m 
£0.501m 
£0.486m 
£0.333m 
£0.400m 
£0.895m 
£1.207m 

Page 9



 

4 

 
Accurate projections for the likely financial position of the Council in 
future years are impossible at present.  As well as the impact of Covid-
19, Brexit and all the underlying complexities of managing the overall 
budget for an organisation delivering hundreds of different services to 
diverse client groups the funding outlook for the medium term is still 
very uncertain due to the impact of the planned major reforms to the 
Local Government Finance System now being deferred (to April 2022) 
and any information on Government funding levels beyond March 2021 
still being unavailable. The Government’s medium term 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) which was expected in the 
autumn has been replaced by another one year Spending Review to be 
published late November which will set out national spending plans for 
Government departments for 2021/22 only.  It is therefore likely to be 
very late in this calendar year before we receive our provisional funding 
settlement for next year.   It is clear, however, that the financial climate 
ahead will still be one of significant financial challenge over the 
medium-term.   It is therefore essential that the Council maintains its 
strategy of limiting new ongoing commitments to the very highest 
priorities and of retaining a higher level of funding in the Budget 
Strategy Reserve than would normally be the case as this provides a 
degree of comfort that the Council will continue to be able to avoid 
emergency in-year budget cuts.   
 

1.2 Capital 
The capital programme totals £80m for 2020/21 which includes all 
approvals since the budget was set.  At the time of compiling this report 
projected spend was 90.6% of the budget allocation.  Historically spend 
is geared towards the end of the year; the impact of Covid-19 will be 
closely monitored and projections updated as more information 
becomes available. 
 

1.3  Corporate Income Collection 
As anticipated, Covid-19 has impacted significantly on collection rates 
with income collected in relation to Business Rates, Council Tax and 
Sales Ledger all currently behind expected levels.  As part of the range 
of support provided to residents and businesses, debt recovery action 
was suspended in March 2020; ‘soft’ reminders were issued during July 
and recovery action recommenced in August following the usual 
recovery cycle. 
 
Council Tax - it is currently estimated that collection will be significantly 
lower in 2020/21 than previous years.  10,500 taxpayers also took the 
opportunity of deferred payment arrangements for April and May.  A 
6% reduction in income collection is currently expected for the year 
although projections are difficult as the impacts of the unwinding of the 
Government’s furlough scheme are difficult to predict.  In many cases 
payment arrangements can be agreed that will see recovery continuing 
beyond March 2021.   
 

Page 10



 

5 

Business Rates – the total amount to be collected has reduced by 
almost £30m as a result of the Government providing a 1 year 100% 
business rates discount to the retail, hospitality and leisure sectors (the 
Council will be compensated for this in full by the Government).  
However, in view of the severe challenges being faced by many 
businesses as a result of the pandemic, it is estimated that collection 
will be significantly lower on the balance that has not benefitted from 
the Government’s relief measures.  A 12.5% reduction in income 
collection is expected for the year but again payment arrangements 
extending into 2021/22 will be agreed in appropriate cases. 
 
In total, the shortfall in Council Tax and Business Rates income this 
year is currently expected to be around £8m.  However this position is 
regularly reviewed and it is hoped that a proactive and sensitive 
approach to debt recovery may reduce the shortfall by year end. Under 
normal circumstances this shortfall impacts on cash flow in 2020/21 
and the budget in 2021/22 as it falls on the collection fund as a deficit 
but as explained above it is the current intention to provide against the 
shortfall in the current financial year.   
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
   

Members are asked to:- 
 

 
(i) Note the 2020/21 revenue budget position which has been 

significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic 
  
(ii) Recommend that Full Council approve the allocation of the 

budgeted contingency and balances detailed in Section 5.1 
 
(iii) Note the position in relation to capital spend and the 

recommendations that Full Council approve the changes to the 
capital programme detailed in Appendix 3 

 
(iv) Note the projected collection rates for NNDR, council tax and 

sales ledger. 
 

 
 
3.0 SUMMARY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

COMMUNITY IMPACT Do these proposals contribute to specific Co-
operative Council priorities? 

Yes Delivery of all priorities depend on the 
effective use of available resources.  
Regular financial monitoring in the 
financial management reports helps to 
highlight variations from plan so that 
action can be taken to effectively 

Page 11



 

6 

manage the Council’s budget. 

Will the proposals impact on specific groups of 
people? 

No  

TARGET 
COMPLETION/DELIVERY 
DATE 
 

To outturn within the budget set for 2020/21 at 
31/3/21.    
 

FINANCIAL/VALUE FOR 
MONEY IMPACT 

Yes  The financial impacts are detailed 
throughout the report. 
 

LEGAL ISSUES No  None directly arising from this report.  
The S151 Officer has a statutory duty 
to monitor income and expenditure 
and ensure that the Council takes 
action if overall net overspends 
/shortfalls emerge.   

OTHER IMPACTS, RISKS 
& OPPORTUNITIES 

No  Budget holders actively manage their 
budgets and the many financial risks 
and challenges that council services 
face, examples include the risk of a 
particularly harsh winter which would 
impact adversely on the winter gritting 
and adult social care budgets, the 
increasing dependency on income 
from a wide range of activities and the 
risk of interest rate movements.  The 
Council has comprehensive risk 
management arrangements in place, 
which includes a separate Covid-19 
risk register which is reviewed and 
updated regularly by the Senior 
Management Team.  A Recovery 
Coordinating Group has been 
establish to manage the transition from 
Covid-19 emergency response to a 
recovery, reform and reset phase and 
financial management is a key 
component of this with the s.151 
officer represented on all thematic 
groups. 
 

IMPACT ON SPECIFIC 
WARDS 

No  

 
 

Page 12



 

7 

 
PART B) – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
4.0 2020/21 REVENUE BUDGET 
 
4.1 Financial management is the responsibility of budget holders and is 

supported by Finance staff using a risk based approach: following 
considerable reductions in finance resources through savings exercises 
in previous years, more focus is given to higher risk areas (high 
value/more volatile); less frequent financial monitoring is undertaken on 
budgets deemed to be medium to lower risk.  

 
4.2 The overall 2020/21 budget position is summarised in the table below: 
 

  Net Variation Movement Total 

Revenue       
Budget 

Cabinet 
7 July 
2020 

  Current 
Variations 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Prosperity & Investment (4,620) 3,384 (527) 2,857 

Finance & Resources 14,522 236 (202) 34 

Policy & Governance 705 185 0 185 

          

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support 36,318 3,802 (1,120) 2,682 

Education & Skills 12,636 1,350 188 1,538 

          

Adult Social Care 45,625 5,563 (765) 4,798 

Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning 3,968 592 (4) 588 

          

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services 30,452 485 9 494 

Communities, Customer & Commercial 
Services 

3,163 4,664 459 5,123 

Housing, Employment & Infrastructure 1,864 570 (101) 469 

Corporate Communications 21 30 204 234 

          

Council Wide (15,680) (124) 0 (124) 

Overall Service Pressure 128,974 20,737 (1,859) 18,878 

MoHCLG Grant   (10,144) (5,052) (15,196) 

Total after Grant 128,974 10,593 (6,911) 3,682 

Council Tax/Business Rates impact   8,037 0 8,037 

Total including CT and Rates 128,974 18,630 (6,911) 11,719 

 
 
4.3 Projected variances over £0.250m are highlighted below, all other 

variances over £50k are detailed in Appendix 2. 
 

Service Area Variance £m 
Property & Investment 
 
Property Investment Portfolio – shortfall in rental income 
due to Covid-19.  More information will be available when the 

 
 

+2.029 
 

Page 13



 

8 

first quarter rent position is known and the monitoring will be 
updated to reflect this in the next report.  The position is 
offset by a one-off contribution from reserves. 
 

 
 
 

Car Parks – income shortfall as a result of Covid-19 closures +0.284 
  
Planning Fees – estimated impact of slow-down in planning 
fee applications due to Covid-19.  Projections will be kept 
under review. 
 
 

+0.400 

Children’s Safeguarding & Family Support 
 

 

Children In Care Placements – the number of residential 
placements has fallen over the past year, although the 
average cost of placements has risen.  The strategy of 
increasing internal fostering has led to lower numbers and 
costs in external placements and overall there is a positive 
trend in relation to the cost of placements.  However, the 
additional placements costs connected to Covid-19 as 
children with complex needs come into care as a result of 
pressure on families. 
 

+1.213 

Staffing – vacancies have to be covered by agency 
appointments which gives rise to an overall pressure on 
staffing budgets.  As newly qualified social workers gain 
experience the need for additional agency staff should 
reduce as they can increase their caseload.  Additional costs 
relating to Covid-19 is also factored into the projection.   
 

+0.455 
 

Education & Skills 
 

 
 

Arthog – challenging income targets together with the impact 
of Covid-19 which has prevented income generation which 
has extended into the Summer term.  It is not clear when 
normal levels of activity will be possible and further losses are 
therefore expected since the last report. 
 
Home to School Transport – additional costs (pre and post 
16) 
 

+0.895 
 
 
 
 
 

+0.295 

Adult Social Care  

Purchasing, Long Term Care – support provided to care 
providers and clients due to Covid-19 and anticipated 
pressures on levels of care needed. 
 

+3.458 
 

Purchasing, Short Term Reablement care – anticipated 
pressures during the year; £1.9m relates to contracts 
procured and reimbursed by the CCG for Covid-19 

+2.911 
 

Page 14



 

9 

discharges. 
 
Income – overachievement of client contributions towards 
care. 
 

-0.258 

Income – NHS Contributions to offset care package costs 
where the client has health care needs. 
 

-1.854 

Income – CCG contribution to short term care-reablement 
and NHS England funding. 
 

-0.988 

My Options – reduced income from charges mainly for ASC 
clients plus loss of external income 
 

+1.207 

Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning 
 

 

Personal Protective Equipment – costs of purchasing PPE 
as a result of Covid-19 
 

+0.521 

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services  
 

Waste Collection–additional vehicle and staffing costs due 
to Covid-19 
 

+0.300 

Communities, Customer & Commercial Services  
 

Leisure Operations – loss of budgeted income relating to 
closures required due to Covid-19. 
 

+3.383 
 

Catering – loss of income due to Covid-19 closures. 
 

+0.339 

Theatre – loss of income due to Covid-19 closure 
 

+0.501 

Housing Benefit Subsidy – impact of suspending recovery 
which recommenced in August 
 

+0.262 

Housing, Employment & Infrastructure 
 

 

Homelessness – costs associated with preventing 
homelessness during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

+0.399 

 
 

5.0 CONTINGENCIES & BALANCES 
 
5.1 The 2020/21 budget includes a general contingency of £3.2m, which is 

set aside to meet any unforeseen expenditure, or delays in phasing in 
the significant level of savings that the Council has to deliver this year.  
Clearly it is still very early in the financial year and many other 
challenges are likely to arise for the Council during the remaining 

Page 15



 

10 

months of 2020/21, it would not therefore be prudent to allocate the full 
contingency at this mid-way point in the year.  However, one priority is 
now put forward for funding and if approved would leave £3m in the 
general contingency to cover pressures in the remainder of the year:- 

 
 £0.2m to pump-prime the creation of Community Action Teams to 

support an all-encompassing offer for town and parish councils looking 
for an enhanced service in the following areas: 

 Neighbourhood enforcement  

 Grounds & cleansing 

 Area engagement/locality officer (liaison, inspection and reporting) 

 
In addition to the general contingency, an amount is also held centrally 
for contractual inflation totalling just under £1m which forms part of the 
approved revenue budget and will only be allocated to specific budgets 
when the relevant inflation information is available.  The Council also 
has General and Special Fund Balances.  It is proposed to allocate 
additional contract inflation of £0.077m from the inflation contingency 
for the waste contract and to use £0.2m Special Fund Balances to 
invest in footway lighting improvements in 2020/21.  
 

6.0 CAPITAL  
 
6.1 2020/21 Capital Programme 

The capital programme totals £80.47m, which includes the approvals 
proposed in this report.  The financial position is shown in the table 
below which shows projected spend is currently at £72.94m. 
 

Directorate Current Spend % Year End 

  Budget to date Spend Projection 

  £m £m £m £m 

Prosperity & Investment           31.51        10.02  31.8%       29.76  

Policy & Governance             0.09             -    0.0%         0.06  

Education & Skills             9.13          0.79  8.7%         8.16  

Adult Social Care             0.24          0.04  14.8%         0.21  

Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning             0.07             -    0.0%         0.07  

Neigh'hood & Enforcement Services           23.97          9.72  40.6%       23.27  

Ctties, Customer & Commercial             5.13          1.12  21.9%         4.24  

Housing, Employment & Infrastructure             7.44          1.32  17.7%         5.07  

Corporate Items             2.88          0.10  3.3%         2.10  

Total           80.47        23.11  28.7%       72.94  

 
6.2 The 2020/21 capital programme relies on £9.129m of receipts as part 

of its funding (after adjusting for known changes). Capital receipts 
included in the medium term budget strategy are under continual 
review and any changes will be reflected in future budget projections 
but are currently projected to be on target.   

 
 
 

Page 16



 

11 

7.0 CORPORATE INCOME MONITORING  
 
7.1 The Council’s budget includes significant income streams which are 

regularly monitored to ensure they are on track to achieve targets that 
have been set and so that remedial action can be.  The three main 
areas are Council Tax, NNDR (business rates) and Sales Ledger.  
Current monitoring information relating to these is provided below.  The 
Council pursues outstanding debt vigorously, until all possible recovery 
avenues have been exhausted, but also prudently provides for bad 
debts in its accounts.  In response to the pandemic, the Council 
suspended usual recovery action and has, since recovery action 
recommenced in August, adopted a proactive and supportive approach 
to debt recovery.    

 
7.2 As anticipated, Covid-19 has impacted significantly on collection rates 

with income collected in relation to Business Rates, Council Tax and 
Sales Ledger all currently behind expected levels.  Summary collection 
information is below.  
 

 
Income Collection – September 2020 

 Actual 

Council Tax - Amount Collected 52.48% 

NNDR - Amount Collected  55.52% 
 

Sales Ledger – Level of 
Outstanding Debt 

7.77% 

 
7.3 Council Tax (£92.2m) 

The percentage of the current year liability for council tax which the 
authority should have received during the year, as a percentage of 
annual collectable debit. The measure does not take account of debt 
that continues to be pursued and collected after the end of the financial 
year in which it became due.   
  
Year End performance 2019/20    97.03% 
  
Performance is cumulative during the year and expressed against the 
complete year’s debit.   
 

Month End Actual Last year Actual 

52.48 % 54.96 % 

 
 Recovery action was suspended in March 2020 due to the COVID 19 
pandemic. Deferred payment arrangements were offered and 10,500 
taxpayers took this opportunity.  The lower collection rates are 
therefore partly attributable to the later instalments which began in 
June.  Recovery action recommenced at the end of July by sending a 
‘soft’ reminder, and normal recovery processes recommenced at the 
end of August. 
 

Page 17



 

12 

A 6% drop in collection is anticipated this year.   
  

  7.4   NNDR-Business Rates (£48.1m) 
The % of business rates for 2020/21 that should have been collected 
during the year.  This target, as for council tax, ignores our continuing 
collection of earlier years’ liabilities.   
  
The measure does not take into account the debt that continues to be 
pursued and collected after the end of the financial year in which it 
became due.   
   

          Year End performance 2019/20                                  97.58% 
          

Month End Actual Last year Actual 

 55.52 % 57.59 % 

  
The amount collectable has reduced by almost £30m as a result of the 
Government providing a 1 year 100% discount to those businesses in 
the retail, hospitality and leisure sectors.  Recovery action was 
suspended in March 2020 due to the COVID 19 pandemic but 
recommenced at the end of August. 
 
We are assuming a loss of collection of 12.5% in-year as businesses 
have been severely impacted by the COVID 19 crisis.  Clearly, the next 
few months will have a significant impact upon the business sector and 
collection rates.  

 
7.5 Sales Ledger (£56.4m) 

This includes general debt and Social Care debt.  Debt below 2 months 
is classified as a normal credit period. 
  

 Performance of income collection for 2020/21 is as follows: 
 

Age of 
debt 

Sept 2020 

£m % 

Total 4.382 7.77% 

Sales Ledger recovery was suspended in March 2020 and 
recommenced in August 2020.  Debt outstanding is £1.7m higher than 
this point last year, but has reduced from last month. 

8.0 PREVIOUS MINUTES 
05/03/2020 – Council, Service & Financial Planning Strategy 
18/06/2020 - Cabinet, 2019/20 Outturn Report 
09/07/2020 – Cabinet, 2020/21 Financial Monitoring Report 
16/07/2020 – Full Council, 2020/21 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

9.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
2020/21 Financial Ledger reports 
2020/21 Service & Financial Planning Report 

Page 18



 

13 

 
 
Report Prepared by: 
Ken Clarke, Director: Finance & HR (Chief Financial Officer) – 01952 
383100;  
Pauline Harris, Corporate Finance Manager – 01952 383701 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Net Revenue Variation Movement Current

Budget 09/07/2020                              

Cabinet Report

Variation

£ £ £ £

Prosperity & Investment (4,619,509) 3,383,859 (526,958) 2,856,901

Finance & Resources 14,522,124 235,659 (201,441) 34,218

Policy & Governance 705,343 185,000 0 185,000

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support 36,317,551 3,802,000 (1,120,291) 2,681,709

Education & Skills 12,635,931 1,349,717 188,377 1,538,094

Adult Social Care 45,624,786 5,563,000 (764,897) 4,798,103

Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning 3,967,608 591,818 (3,756) 588,062

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services 30,452,479 485,437 8,874 494,311

Communities, Customer & Commercial Services 3,163,457 4,664,202 458,978 5,123,180

Housing, Employment & Infrastructure 1,863,833 570,265 (101,611) 468,654

Corporate Communications 20,840 29,778 203,756 233,534

Council Wide (15,679,562) (124,000) 0 (124,000)

Total 128,974,881 20,736,735 (1,858,969) 18,877,766

MoHCLG Grant (10,144,000) (5,051,849) (15,195,849)

Total after Grant 128,974,881 10,592,735 (6,910,818) 3,681,917

Council Tax/Business Rates impact 8,037,000 0 8,037,000

Total including CT and Rates 128,974,881 18,629,735 (6,910,818) 11,718,917

Service Area

Summary of 2020/21 Projected Variations

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

Property & Investment Income - PIP (8,240,260)            2,028,928 Estimated impact of rent reductions and potential bad debt as a result of Covid 

implications.  Service area has received some specific requests for rent reductions 

and will continue to monitor the position.  It will become clearer towards end of 

September once the team is able to confirm with the Businesses their success in 

accessing government grants and loans.

Income - Car Parks (510,180)               284,122 Southwater and Hall Court Car Park reduced income, assumes no income April - 

August with 50% take up for 6 months from September.  Income has been received in 

July and is showing an improving position in August, income levels are being reviewed 

monthly.

BiT Income - FM Fees (440,830)               34,000 Social isolating impacting on ability to work on sites along with reduced requests for 

work due to site closures.

Premises (194,000)               194,000 Undeliverable saving, alternative options to be considered but has been stalled due to 

Covid pressures.

Property - Utilities 675,910                (101,709) Estimated Property Utility underspends April - July, (excludes Social Care properties & 

Energy Centre).  This projection may change and will be reviewed once we have 

receipt of supplier invoices for the latest period. 

Development Management Planning fees (1,515,240)            400,000 Estimated slow down in Planning applications due to Covid.

Other variances under £50k 5,605,091             17,560

(4,619,509) 2,856,901

Loss of Court Fees Income (495,570)               240,000 Assumes 6 months impact

HR income (1,084,830)            10,733 Assumes 8  months impact

HR 3,000 To provide occupational health assessments

Revenues - Printing 

Services

(205,240)               18,160 income shortfall - 6 months assumed impact

Revenues income 20,000 loss of external income - 6 months impact assumed

Revenues Supplies & Services 311,970                (98,831) Projected underspends on printing, postage, IT services and fees.

Variations Under £50k
15,995,794           (158,844) £48k from vacant posts in Finance and PA's and underspends from supplies & 

services budgets across Finance & Resources including bank charges.

14,522,124 34,218

Legal services  & Land 

charges

Income (235,410) 120,000 Reduced income anticipated

Legal Services Employees 1,150,940 39,000 Demands on certain Legal posts-requirement for fixed tem posts

Variations under £50k (210,187) 26,000

705,343 185,000

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Finance & Resources

Total Finance & Resources

Prosperity & Investment

Total Prosperity & Investment

Policy & Governance

Total Policy & Governance
1

P
age 23



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

CIC Placements 19,176,231 1,212,917 The number of children and young people in residential placements has fallen over the 

past year, although the average cost of such placements has risen. A comparatively 

large number of young people in residential placements will turn 18 over the next 2 

years and this should also have an impact upon reducing costs.   The numbers and 

costs of children in external foster placements has also fallen as the strategy of 

investing in internal foster carers has begun to change the balance of placements 

towards internal carers.  Overall there are some positive trends concerning the cost of 

placements, but there is also a significant risk that this progress is more than offset by 

additional placement costs connected to CV19, such as additional children with 

complex needs coming into care as a result of the additional pressure on families, 

together with associated increases in court fees and potential premiums on placement 

fees.

Post 18 Staying Put & Leaving Care Support 317,895 115,649 This expenditure comprises Post 18 Staying Put and Leaving Care payments, both of 

which have been under pressure as a result of Covid-related statutory guidance, with 

all looked after children turning 18 being offered staying put arrangements to continue 

in their current placement for an extended period of time. Leaving care payments have 

also been increased to accommodate the vulnerability of this cohort of young people 

during the pandemic. The projected CV19 additional costs are based on the 

assumption that were will be three months delay in stepping down young people 

turning 18 from their existing placement.

Staffing - salaries 11,945,153 (262,103) The current projection reflects the impact of vacancies and staff appointments at 

below the top of scale.  The CV19 costs are based on assumed additional costs 

related to the Emergency Duties Team.

Staffing - Agency Costs 0 717,226 In some cases vacancies will need to be covered by agency appointments which 

generally cost around one-third more than an equivalent substantive LA appointment, 

resulting in additional pressure to the Safeguarding budget. In addition in specific areas 

of the service agency staff are being placed to maintain levels of caseload appropriate 

to the experience of staff.  However as these staff, such as newly qualified social 

workers, gain experience and the progression framework now in place in the service 

assists retention of staff, the need for additional agency staff should reduce and, 

excluding the impact of CV19 current levels of expected expenditure on agency staff in 

2020/21 are significantly less than incurred in 2019/20.  The projected additional costs 

related to CV19 reflect the cost of  additional agency staff to meet an anticipated surge 

in demand as a result of the impact upon families of social and economic pressures.

Children with Disabilities 1,319,142 (153,860) Current projections suggest that the costs of direct payments to carers will be at a 

similar level of 2019/20 and that the increases in costs in this area in recent years 

have begun to level off.
Children in Care Adoption 

Allowances & Adoption 

Agency fees

391,050 (152,265) When children are adopted through external agencies (rather than by carers recruited 

by the joint adoption service) a significant fee is payable.  In 2019/20 an unusually high 

number of children were placed via agencies and so significant costs were incurred, 

leading to the 2020/21 budget being significantly increased.  Although it is difficult to 

predict accurately at this point in the year, the current expectation is that number of 

external placements could be somewhat lower in 2020/21.

Joint Adoption Service 609,847 193,103 There have been some increases in staff to support increasing numbers of families 

wishing to adopt coming through.  In addition there had been additional staffing 

appointments made on the basis of the costs being covered by additional Adoption 

Support Fund income, but the planned income has yet to materialise.

Contribution from Reserves -806,777 (15,316)

Health Funding -400,000 153,194 The projected income from Health is currently based on that received in 2019/20. The 

service continues to liaise with health colleagues regarding funding contributions for 

children in care with health issues and the likely income from Health will become 

clearer as the year progresses.

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support

2

P
age 24



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Under £50k 2,811,886 853,879 Significant contributors to this variance include the costs of equipment for children, 

S17 payments for children in need, payments to families that have no recourse to 

public funds,childminders fees and interpreters fees.  Some of these costs are 

expected to increase beyond normal levels as a result of the social impact of CV19.

Total 35,364,426 2,662,423

Independent Review - Staffing 769,580 (1,971)

Independent Review - Under £50k 183,545 21,258

36,317,551 2,681,709

Specialist Services 1,119,155 39,790 There was some  loss of income from schools over the summer term due to the 

impact of CV19. In addition there are projected legal costs arising from tribunals.  

However some of these additional costs have been offset by savings from vacancies, 

etc.

Traded Advisory Service 100,173 63,945 There was some  loss of income from schools over the summer term due to the 

impact of CV19.  However much of this has been offset due to savings from 

vacancies, etc.

School Transport 2,896,951 149,000 There is an existing budget pressure for home to school transport and the  CV19 

requirements are adding further costs. However the Council will be able to apply for a 

government grant to cover the additional costs associated with CV19's impact upon 

home to school transport, i.e the need to commission additional transport to meet 

social distancing requirements.  At this stage, the monitoring variance therefore 

reflects the existing transport budget pressure.  

Post 16 Transport 288,911 145,000 As with pre 16 transport costs, there is an existing budget pressure in this area.  The 

comments above concerning the impact of CV19 and government funding also apply 

to post 16 transport.

Arthog 305,990 895,138 Arthog already had challenging income targets and the impact of CV19 has been to 

prevent income generation during the summer term.  Given the current national 

situation with regard to CV19, the intention earlier in the year to return to more normal 

levels of activity in the Autumn and Spring terms does not seem likely. The full year 

loss of income now projected is therefore considerably higher than previously reported.

Music Service 64,460 (23,661) Significant income has been lost as a result of CV19 restrictions but these have been 

offset by salary and other savings as tutors are employed on a flexible basis.

Skills Service Delivery (75,340) 73,116 This represents a savings target that has yet to be achieved.  The service continues to 

look for opportunities to achieve this saving, although this has been made more 

challenging by the impact of CV19 on income generation.

Job Box (107,880) 83,136 The removal of opportunities to meet clients face to face due to CV19 has potential to 

reduce the income generated  from 'Prospect Services (the National Careers Service).  

Prospect are however redefining the outcomes against which payments will be made, 

so the extent to which the potential loss identified occurs is  currently unclear.

Work Ready, Life Ready 755,940 37,819 The projected loss of income connected to CV19 has been compensated by savings 

on staffing (e.g. casual staff costs) leaving a small net variance.

Variations under £50,000 7,287,571 74,811

12,635,931 1,538,094

Total Children's Safeguarding & Family Support

Total Education & Skills

Education & Skills

3

P
age 25



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Purchasing - all types of 

Long term care

Residential/Residential EMI care, Nursing/Nursing 

EMI care, Homecare, Direct Payments, Shared 

Lives, Supported Accommodation and Supported 

Living, Daycare: Spot and Block contracts

52,948,380 3,458,195 CV19 variations relates to various actions to support providers and clients, these 

include additional an 10% payment to providers in the first quarter. It also reflects 

anticipated pressure on levels of care needed throughout the year as a result of the 

pandemic. There is still a level of uncertainty on the projected costs in this area due to 

the increased levels of Covid  especially as we move towards the winter period.

Purchasing-short term 

reablement care(through 

BCF)

Bed based care and Homecare for up to 6 weeks 1,999,270 2,910,974 £1.435m relates to Contracts procured and reimbursed by the CCG for block beds for 

Covid discharges-see NHS income below

Income Client contributions (6,549,250) (257,986) Covid impact of suspending charging, overachievement of client contributions based 

on level of charges for 2019/20

NHS Contributions (1,362,510) (1,853,762) Continued positive outcomes from working closely with CCG identifying health 

contributions towards care. Covid includes block contracts £1.435m

Oher income-grants etc. (11,163,920) (987,769) Includes  CCG contribution to pressures in short term care-reablement. This is based 

on a risk share agreement. The remainder is mostly NHS England funding towards 

Transforming Care Partnership client costs

My Options-Adults & 

Children's services

Trading accounts 508,100 1,206,906 Reduced income from charges mainly for Adult Social Care clients-  lost external 

income due to closure of Day Services since March is included on the next line as a 

Covid cost

Trading accounts 360,441 Estimated losses to external income

Contribution from reserves (54,441)

Other Variations under £50k 9,244,716 15,545

45,624,786 4,798,103

Purchase of PPE                           -   520,886 Net cost of the purchase of PPE including hand sanitiser, aprons, glasses, gloves, 

wipes etc.

Supporting People & Extra 

Care

                          -   120,000 Impact of loss of saving as a result of COVID19, 4 months assumed

Variations Under £50k 3,967,608             (52,824) Underspends from staffing and supplies & services

3,967,608 588,062

Offstreet Parking Various 56,990                  202,589 Loss of income from Ironbridge car parks assumed income is 50% less than 2019/20 

(this was 3 months last period). Projections based on income levels as in 2019/20. 

Service variations relate to additional NNDR costs of £20k plus shortfalls against 

income targets for remainder of the year.

Licensing Income (227,870)               80,643 Licensing income shortfall from license renewal process being suspended for 6 

months for taxi licenses, premises licenses etc. This pressure could increase should 

companies face further financial hardships once re-opened through lower levels of 

trading income as a result of social distancing.

Highways & Transportation 

Strategic Policy

Employees 68,970                  (68,970) Vacant post projected all year

Waste Collection Various 5,329,390             300,016 Additional collection costs of £32k per month for 6 months as a result of additional 

vehicle and staffing costs from COVID19. Service variation relates to shortfall on bulk 

collection costs and shortfall on new build admin fees

Total Adult Social Care

Adult Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning

Total Health, Wellbeing & Commissioning

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services

4

P
age 26



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Waste Transport, Treatment 

and Disposal payment

Various 5,074,705             49,774 Increased tonnage levels for residual waste which has been offset by underspends on 

food waste savings and landfill tax. Service underspend due to penalty income to be 

received in respect of 2019/20 of £190k, TUPE refund of £77k and additional income 

from recyclates of £76k due to inflationary increase in prices, this has been offset by 

£150k pressure from increase in waste tonnages above waste model.

Transport Policy Employees 187,015                (62,766) Underspend projected on staffing as a result of 2 vacant posts for part of the year.

Neighbourhood & 

Environmental Services

Employees 389,480                (55,245) Vacant post projected for remainder of the year.

Variations Under £50k 19,573,799           48,270 CV19 Variations due to income shortfalls from Environmental Health, Civil Parking 

Enforcement, road safety, departure charges and fleet. 

30,452,479 494,311

Leisure Income (5,164,085) 3,382,614 Loss of budgeted income April-July 2020 for Leisure/Ice Rink closures. Leisure 

projections for the remainder of the year have now been updated based upon a 

percentage of profiled income targets being achieved, this ranges from as low as 10% 

of income due up to 100%. Income profiles will be reviewed with Leisure Managers on 

a monthly basis and revised as appropriate.  Current projections are subject to change 

and will depend on further easing or tightening of restrictions and customers' 

confidence in returning.

Education Catering Income - net of food costs (3,220,753) 105,051 Net impact on School catering after charging FSM & UIFSM less budgeted food costs 

to Schools.  Includes costs associated with FSM deliveries 2 weeks end of Spring 

Term. Projections will be reviewed again in November once data has been received on 

meal numbers for the first half term since the schools returned in September.

Commercial Catering Income - net of food costs (208,420) 227,800 Income net of provisions Café go and TIR café. It has been assumed that TIR Cafe 

will be closed for the remainder of the year as the space is currently being used for 

boot hire to enable social distancing in the Ice Rink. As a result of staff continuing to 

work from home it has also been assumed that Cafe Go will remain closed for the rest 

of the year

Commercial Projects Additional savings targets (140,500) 205,384 Staff from team have been and are still partially redeployed during Covid response 

which has impacted on progress on identifying alternative savings. New model now 

being developed to better support Council-wide income generation.  Existing pressure 

linked to income targets, including £75k energy saving target.  Original plan to install a 

private wire at the solar farm was not progressed after Ofgem decision that this would 

result in loss of Feed in Tariff income. Option of major expansion of District Heat 

Network in progress (BEIS funding secured for feasibility study) but not a short-term 

option . This pressure also includes advertising shortfall of £43.5k against advertising 

income target, bus shelter advertising contract commenced Sept 2020 that will 

address pressure in 2021/22. £20.8k shortfall against roundabout sponsorship income 

due to existing customers cancelling contracts due to Covid impact.

Communities, Customer & 

Commercial Services

Saving to be identified (84,280) 84,280 Non delivery of planned savings - not able to progress/scope due to Covid pressures.

Theatre Various 188,350 407,864 Assumed Theatre closed all year, loss of income from Theatre offset by reductions in 

Supplies & Services spend.  We are currently assessing options for a reduced 

programme in December 2020 subject to the easing of Government restrictions and 

SMT/member approval.   Social distancing requirements will reduce capacity of 

Theatre to one-third of normal capacity, therefore this will need to be subject to a 

business case.  

Total Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services

Communities, Customer & Commercial Services

5

P
age 27



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Theatre Bar Various (28,030) 93,601 Loss of income from Theatre Bar as a result of closure all year.  As above.

Customer Contact Centre Employees 786,590 49,934 Non delivery of £25k saving target and additional staffing costs as a result of 

COVID19. Vacancy saving of £69k not projected wholly to be delivered due to 

additional demand on the service.

Housing Benefit/Council Tax 

Support Team

Employees 653,440 118,749 Savings target of £160k which will not be fully delivered as a result of COVID19, offset 

by grants received in respect of Welfare Reform.

Housing Benefit/Council Tax 

Support Team

Income (832,035) (198,107) Additional government grants received in respect of Welfare Reform

Housing Benefit Subsidy Various (190,000) 261,805 Impact of suspending the recovery of overpayments from ongoing benefit and a 

reduction in recovery of overpayments in the debtors system. This projection improved 

since last period as a result of the recovery of overpayments being re-commenced 

from August onwards. 

Registration Services Various 9,220 143,655 Income shortfalls as a result of reduction in number of ceremonies offset by reduction 

in staffing costs.  This assumes a 50% reduction in income this year, however some 

weddings may be rescheduled for later in 2020/1, so position may improve.

Cemeteries Various (9,800) (56,554) Additional income received as a result of an increase in burials. 

ICT - Corporate Supplies & 

Services

Supplies & Services 1,363,540 68,781 Overspend arising from additional license costs, Capita & Brightcloud

ICT - PC Replacement Supplies & Services 474,845 97,689 Projected increase in costs associated with PC equipment £52.3k and additional 

Microsoft 365 licenses £34.5k. Options to capitalise some spend are being explored 

which may reduce the variation.

Other variations under £50k 9,565,375 130,634

3,163,457 5,123,180

Housing Homelessness - Prevention & Bed & Breakfast 70,000 398,520 Homelessness pressure April to June £80k after applying MHCLG grant £12k and  

£22k use of RSI Grant Rent bonds.  Housing benefit income assumed at 75% is 

claimed including tenants with No Recourse to Public Funds.  Estimated ongoing cost 

from July assumed at current levels of support is £34k per month. However there are 

emerging pressures from load which may require temporary additional resources.

Other under £50k 1,793,833 70,134 Covid income pressures under £50k relating to HMO licenses, Civil penalties, 

Immigration certificates and rental income, offset by underspends on mileage, printing 

and postage. 

1,863,833 468,654

Corporate Communications

Graphic Design Income shortfall 111,325                111,325 Change to internal charging mechanism

Corporate Communications Supplies & Services 35,130                  99,130 Printing and postage cost of letters to residents re COVID 19

Variations under £50k (125,615)               23,079

20,840 233,534

Corporate

Total Communities, Customer & Commercial Services

Housing, Employment & Infrastructure

Total Housing, Employment & Infrastructure

Total Corporate Communications

6

P
age 28



Appendix 2

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

£ £

2020/21Revenue Budget Variations over £50,000

Pensions Employees (220,000) One off discount received on prepayment of pension contribution to Shropshire County 

Pension Fund

WME Dividend 96,000 Estimated impact on dividend

Variations under £50k (15,679,562) 0

(15,679,562) (124,000)

128,974,881 18,877,766Total

Total Corporate

7

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Slippage

Scheme Service Area Funding Source 20/21 21/22 22/23 Later Yrs

£ £ £ £

Property Investment Portfolio Property and Investment Prudential (4,200,000.00) 4,200,000.00

Capital Receipts Site preparation Property and Investment Capital receipts (300,000.00) 300,000.00 

Regeneration and Investment Fund Property and Investment Prudential (6,000,000.00) 5,400,000.00 4,600,000.00 (4,000,000.00)

Ironbridge Gorge stability Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Prudential (150,000.00) 150,000.00

A442 Challenge project Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Prudential (1,600,000.00) 1,600,000.00 

A442 Challenge project Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Grant (4,400,000.00) 4,400,000.00

Managing the funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Capital receipts (6,000,000.00) 6,000,000.00

Managing the funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Prudential 6,000,000.00 (6,000,000.00)

ICT/e-Gov Customer & Commerical Services Prudential 1,171,000.00 (712,290.00) (458,710.00)

All Other School Schemes Education & Skills Grant (1,700,000.00) 1,700,000.00 

Total (17,179,000.00) 17,037,710.00 4,141,290.00 (4,000,000.00)

New Allocations

Scheme Service Area Funding Source 20/21 21/22 22/23 Later Yrs

£ £ £ £

Asset Management Plan-General Works & Surveys Prosperity & Investment Grant 14,488.80

Town Centre Compound Prosperity & Investment Prudential 214,000.00

Towns Fund Prosperity & Investment Grant 1,000,000.00

Get Building Fund Prosperity & Investment Grant 1,428,000.00                952,000.00              

Ironbridge Gorge Stability Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Revenue 71,037.49                     

Active Travel Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Grant 55,273.00                     

Managing the funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Capital receipts 137,656.00

Managing the funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Prudential (137,656.00)

Pride - Community Fund Grants Customer & Commercial Services Revenue (50,000.00)

ICT/e-Gov Customer & Commerical Services Revenue (49,150.73)

Customer Services System Development Customer & Commerical Services Revenue (5,280.90)

Legacy Fund Communities, Customer and Commercial Services Revenue 17,000.00                     

All Other School Schemes Education & Skills Grant 692,311.96                   

Pride in Your High Street Housing, Employment & Infrastructure Grant 229,983.00

Total 3,617,662.62 952,000.00 0.00 0.00

Virements

Scheme Service Area Funding Source 20/21 21/22 22/23 Later Yrs

£ £ £ £

Rights of Way Prosperity & Investment Grant 40,000.00 

Ironbridge Gorge Stability Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Prudential 45,000.00 

Total 85,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Capital Approvals - by Service Area

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TELFORD & WREKIN COUNCIL 
 
CABINET                                  5 NOVEMBER 2020 
FULL COUNCIL                       26 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME  - BUSINESS CASE FOR INVESTMENT 
 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
LEAD CABINET MEMBERS – CLLR DAVID WRIGHT & CLLR LEE CARTER         

 
PART A – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
1.0    SUMMARY OF MAIN PROPSALS 
 
1.1 The Housing Investment Programme was established to deliver a portfolio of properties 

for private and affordable rent, responding to the Borough’s housing needs, driving up the 
quality of the rental sector, creating local jobs and generating a long term income stream 
for the Council to invest in frontline services.  
 

1.2 This report provides an update on achievements to date, and presents for consideration 
an updated Business Case, which outlines a future pipeline of schemes. 

 
1.3 To date Nuplace have delivered 329 homes across seven sites with a further 137 

under construction or due to commence on site, bringing the total number of houses 
delivered, or in delivery to 466. Of these properties, 55 are for affordable rent, with the 
remainder being rented on the open market.  
 

1.4 Nuplace’s growing portfolio now provides a range of homes for over 1,000 people across 
the Borough with houses available within North and South Telford and Newport. 
 

1.5 At Maple Fields in Dothill, 19 of the 54 homes have been built to accessible and 
adaptable standards and designated for people over 55 or those with a demonstrable 
need, allowing people to remain living independently for longer in their homes.   

 

1.6 In response to the Council’s commitment to become carbon neutral across Council 
operations by 2030, solar panels and electric car charging points are being installed 
to 46 homes off Southwater Way to reduce energy bills for tenants and work to address 
fuel poverty.    

 

1.7 The programme has resulted in over 28.6 acres of brownfield land being regenerated, 
addressing sites that might otherwise blight communities. 

  
1.8 At the date of this business case, all 329 completed homes are fully occupied, reflecting 

the high level of property and management service being delivered by Nuplace. Voids 
are running at 1.88% cumulatively since the first site was opened, which is well 
below projected levels of 3%.  

 
1.9 For the year ended 31 March 2020, the company delivered a profit of £2.087m before 

interest and taxation and £0.427m after interest and taxation, which was in line with 
current expectations. 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



1.10 Nuplace generates income to the Council from a variety of sources, including services 
supplied and interest on debt finance. Since 2015/16 Nuplace has generated a 
cumulative net incremental income of £4.4m to the Council.  

 

1.11 The Council will also benefit from Council Tax and New Homes Bonus as appropriate on 
the housing stock delivered. This is estimated to have generated an additional 
£1.015m cumulatively to the end of March 2020.   

 

1.12 The Nuplace investment portfolio has experienced strong capital growth. Cumulative 
growth in the portfolio is 17% to the end of March 2020. 

 
1.13 In addition to delivering much needed housing, the programme has delivered considerable 

added value in terms of local employment, apprenticeships, supply chain 
development and the delivery of a range of community projects.   

 

1.14 With an established and positive track record of delivery and management, the report 
identifies a possible pipeline of schemes which have the potential to grow and 
further diversify the portfolio.  

 

1.15 These schemes also seek to effectively respond to established, new and emerging 
Council policy relating to Housing, Specialist & Supported Housing, sustainability 
and climate change. 
 

1.16 The proposals have the potential to deliver an additional 320 homes across seven 
schemes bringing Nuplace’s portfolio to 786 units.  

 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
 

That Cabinet approves the revised Business Case included at Appendix 1 of 
this report. 

2.2 That Cabinet approves the allocation of £38.5m from the Regeneration and 
Investment Fund to support the developments as set out in this report. 
 

2.3 That Cabinet recommends to Full Council, the approval of an extension to the 
Nuplace Loan Facilities Agreement of £36m, the rate and terms to be delegated 
for approval to the Council’s s151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Council Finance & Governance. 
 

2.4 That Cabinet delegates authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with 
the Housing Investment Programme Board to: 

2.4.1 Agree and enter into where necessary any documents, as required, to 
implement the recommendations contained within the revised Business Case.  

2.4.2 
 
 
 

Agree and enter into where necessary any agreements, as required, for the 
disposal or acquisition of land required to give effect to the recommendations 
contained within the Business Case. 

2.5 That Cabinet delegate authority to the Associate Director: Policy & 
Governance to seal or sign any documents required to give effect to the 
recommendations contained in this report. 

 

 

Page 34



 
 
3.0  SUMMARY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 

COMMUNITY 
IMPACT 

Do these proposals contribute to specific Priority Plan 
objective(s)? 

Yes Regenerate those neighbourhoods in need and work to 
ensure that local people have access to suitable housing 

Will the proposals impact on specific groups of people? 

Yes In addition to meeting general housing need, the delivery 
of accessible and adaptable properties will increase the 
availability of high quality housing within the Borough for 
people with mobility issues. 

TARGET 
COMPLETION/ 
DELIVERY DATE 

Indicative timescales for the delivery of future phases of the 
programme are included within Section 4.0 of this report.  

FINANCIAL / VALUE 
FOR MONEY 
IMPACT 

Yes Refer to Section 5.0. 
DR 28/9/20 

LEGAL ISSUES Yes Refer to Section 6.0. 

OTHER IMPACTS, 
RISKS & 
OPPORTUNITIES 

Yes Refer to Section 7.0 

IMPACT ON 
SPECIFIC WARDS 

No Borough wide 

 
PART B – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
4.0 INFORMATION 
 
4.1 The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) is a strategic programme, delivering a 

portfolio of properties for private and affordable rent and in so doing seeking to; 

 Respond to the borough’s housing need for quality rental homes and places to 
live and  supporting the Council’s ambitious growth agenda and major investment 
into the Borough; 

 Raise the standard of rental provision in the Borough, both in terms of the quality 
of the rental homes and the quality of the landlord service;  

 Generate a long term income stream for the Council that can contribute towards 
the protection of frontline services otherwise affected by budgetary constraints;  

 Enhance the Council’s knowledge and expertise of housing delivery and 
management, through the use of in-house resources to undertake the 
development, management and maintenance of the portfolio of rental properties;  

  in the development, management and maintenance of the portfolio of rental 
properties;  

 Stimulate local economic growth through job creation during both the 
construction and operational phases of the Programme; and 

 Regenerate brownfield and stalled sites. 
 

Nuplace Ltd is the Council’s chosen delivery vehicle for the programme.  
 
 
 

Page 35



4.2 Achievements to Date  
 
 The programme has performed consistently well against objectives with key 

achievements outlined in Section 1.0 of the report. A total of ten schemes are now 
completed or in delivery, creating 466 new homes across an increasingly diverse range 
of housing types and tenures as set detailed below: 

 

Site 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed Total 
Adaptable / 
Accessible 

Affordable 
Units 

Pool View (Randlay) 0 13 18 0 31 0 0 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 0 13 85 3 101 0 0 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 0 32 15 0 47 0 0 

Miners Walk (Madeley) 0 36 17 0 53 0 0 

Blossom Walk (Hadley) 0 19 6 0 25 0 3 

Springfields (Newport) 0 25 8 0 33 0 33 

Coppice Court (Snedshill) 0 21 13 5 39 0 6 

Rowan View (Snedshill) 0 10 21 6 37 0 0 

Maple Fields (Dothill) 4 15 20 15 54 19 2 

Southwater Way (Malinslee) 4 18 16 8 46 0 11 

Total 8 202 219 37 466 19 55 

Percentage 2% 43% 47% 8% 100% 4% 11.80% 

  

 
Coppice Court, Snedshill - Nuplace’s fastest letting development  
 

 
                        Homes under construction at Maple Fields, Dothill 

Page 36



 

Planned development at Southwater Way, Malinslee – incorporating solar panels and electric car charging 
points 

 
This diversity of housing is continuing to deliver much needed accommodation for people 
at all stages of their life. The case study below demonstrates how new, accessible 
accommodation, at Maple Fields in Dothill is being effective in enabling people to live 
independently at home for longer.   
 
Reg and his wife Barbara from Dawley were one of the first couples to reserve a specialist 
property when they were announced back in April 2020 and they have told us how renting 
a Nuplace home is the perfect solution for them in their retirement.  
 
After 18 years living in their semi-detached home Reg, 80 and Barbara, 75 can’t wait to 
move into their brand new detached bungalow before the end of the year. After 
experiencing different health issues they had decided they needed to move into a 
bungalow as using the stairs in their current home was becoming more and more difficult.   
 
Reg commented: “We’d been considering moving home for a while when we heard about 
the new Maple Fields development by Nuplace. When we spotted they had bungalows 
and ground floor properties available we became very excited at the prospect of no longer 
having to struggle when using the stairs at home. 
 
“After studying the site plan we knew we wanted a bungalow which was ideally wheelchair 
accessible and we finally decided the Birch was the property for us. Although we are yet 
to move in, the open plan living arrangements look great and the property looks extremely 
adaptable for our needs.  The fact that we have the option of installing a walk in shower is 
just the type of flexibility we need to make the home our own.”  
 

Page 37



 
 

 In addition, the programme continues to deliver considerable added value in terms of 
brownfield land regenerated and local supply chain spend as summarised below: 

 

 Site 
Brownfield land 

brought back into 
use (acres) 

% Spend with 
Local Contractors 

(within 30km) 

Pool View (Randlay) 2.35 63% 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 6.55 58% 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 3.78 69% 

Miners Walk (Madeley) 4.77 65% 

Blossom Walk (Hadley) 1.19 64% 

Springfields (Newport) 1.33 69% 

Coppice Court (Snedshill)  63% 

Maple Fields (Dothill) 5.56 52% 

Rowan View (Snedshill)  20% 

Southwater Way (Malinslee) 3.04  

Total / Average 28.57 58% 

 
This is alongside wider added social value benefits delivered through work with local 
community groups, schools and charities as well as training and apprenticeships 
delivered directly and via the supply chain.   

Page 38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
4.3  Market Conditions 
 

The private rental market continues to grow with around 20% of properties in the borough 
now being privately rented. The make-up of renters also continues to change with this 
becoming an increasingly diverse sector with people looking to rent for a variety of 
reasons, no longer just because of affordability. Over half of renters are now families as 
opposed to single people or couples. Furthermore, half of renters are now classified as 
“high income”, whereas historically renting was associated with lower income groups. 
There is also an increasing body of evidence to support a significant growth in the 
number of older people selling existing homes to pay off debts, boost retirement income, 
help children or letting the family home to downsize, thus entering the private rental 
market at a later stage.  
 
These findings were reinforced at a local level following research undertaken by Housing 
LIN in 2018. Housing LIN are a leading ‘knowledge hub’ on specialist housing and work 
across the sector to promote best practice in the delivery of a range of specialist housing 
types and tenures. Their comprehensive research reviewed current and future demand 
for specialist accommodation for older people and concluded that; 
 
“the current supply of older people’s housing and limited development activity, in the 
context of the assessed future demand for older people’s housing, indicates that there 
will be unmet demand for a range of types of older people’s housing, particularly in 
relation to market rent tenures.” 

 
This increase in quantity and diversity of demand for rental properties is reflected in 
increased supply of as well as changes in rental product, with growth being greatest in 
relation to larger properties. Rents also continue to rise in accordance with this increase 
in demand with these showing a consistent upward trend, albeit below that experienced 
regionally and nationally. 
 
There is also an increasing number of institutional investors in the Borough delivering a 
build to rent product akin to that provided by Nuplace but despite this, demand for 
Nuplace homes remains high with voids running consistently below modelled levels.  
There is no doubt that the status of Nuplace as wholly owned by the Council provides 
confidence and security to renters and opportunities to emphasise this link are now being 
maximised in all marketing and promotional literature.   
 

Page 39



4.4 Regulatory & Policy Context  
 
At a national level, growth in the private rented sector means that it has recently attracted 
increased political, policy and regulatory attention. Concerns about lack of affordability, 
inadequate management and maintenance practices, insecurities associated with short-
term tenancies and no-fault evictions have come into sharper focus. There are clear 
signs that the direction of travel for policy in England is towards accepting the need for 
more active policy intervention. As Nuplace look to further grow their portfolio, due regard 
will need to be given to these potential policy and regulatory changes. However it is 
anticipated that any such changes are likely to provide further support for the high quality 
tenancy and property management and maintenance service already adopted by 
Nuplace.  

 
 At a local level, the Council’s recently launched draft Housing Strategy 2020-2025, 

Specialist & Support Housing Strategy and climate change initiatives provide clear 
direction for the future of housing in the Borough, recognising the importance of new 
build homes as well as existing homes in meeting housing need. Nuplace is recognised 
as an opportunity to initiate change and the pipeline of schemes identified seeks to 
directly respond to all three key objectives including: 

 Objective 1: Creating sustainable, accessible, affordable and integrated 
communities 

 Objective 2: Making the BEST use of our existing homes 

 Objective 3: Providing homes to support and empower our most vulnerable people, 
enabling them to live independently for longer. 

 
4.5  Expansion & Diversification Opportunities  
 

A review of market, policy and regulatory conditions suggest that demand for good 
quality private rented homes looks set to remain a key component of the housing market, 
offering opportunities for further expansion alongside diversification into downsizer, 
accessible and adaptable dwellings.  

In this context, feasibility work has been undertaken on seven pipeline schemes with the 
potential to deliver a further 320 new homes, representing an investment of £48m (a 
breakdown of the £48m is set out in section 5.1). These schemes are summarised below, 
along with proposed levels of affordable dwellings, accessible and adaptable dwellings 
as well as those embodying carbon reduction measures.  

Site Name 

Number 
of 

Dwellings Status  

Est 
Capital 

Cost 
(£m) 

Est 
Start 

Est 
Completion  

Affordable 
Dwellings 

Specialist 
Dwellings 

Carbon 
Reduction 
Measures 

Donnington Wood 
Way, Muxton 70 Brownfield 

       
10.50 Jul-21 Apr-23 (190*) 20 70 

Telford & Wrekin 
Homes  100 Brownfield 

         
13.00 Jan-21 Dec-23 50 0 0 

Former New 
College, Wellington 21 Brownfield 

         
3.40  Oct-21 Oct-22 (74*) 3 21 

Former Charlton, 
Dothill 40 Brownfield 

         
6.10  Jul-21 Nov-22 0 6 40 

The Gower, St 
Georges 19 Brownfield 

         
3.40  Jul-21 Jul-22 0 0 0 

Main Road, Ketley 
Bank 20 Brownfield 

         
3.10  Jan-22 Jan-23 5 3 18 

Station Quarter, 
Telford TC 50 Brownfield 

         
8.50  Mar-22 Mar-24 0 0 50 

  320   
       

48.00      319** 32 199 

Page 40



*dwellings to be delivered via Housing Association partner as part of wider site delivery and therefore don’t 
form part of Nuplace future portfolio 

** 55 affordable dwellings to be directly delivered by Nuplace  

Scheme details, including site plans, are included within Appendix 4 of the Business 
Case. However, in summary:  

o Proposals continue to deliver a range of housing across the borough to meet the 
requirements as identified within the Council’s draft Housing Strategy 2020-2025 
but with a continued focus on two and three bed properties, acknowledging that this 
is where greatest demand is.  

o Proposals introduce further accessible and adaptable dwellings at four of the 
proposed sites, building on the pilot at Maple Fields and directly responding to 
recommendations made by Housing LIN and embodied within the Council’s 
Specialist & Supported Accommodation Strategy. These new homes will free up 
dwellings which are currently under capacity and provide occupiers with a desirable 
alternative which allows them to remain living independently at home for longer.  

o The establishment of Telford & Wrekin Homes is an important diversification for the 
Housing Investment Programme which involves acquiring, refurbishing and renting 
out properties at locations across the borough. This proposal will: 

 Further disseminate the good work of the Housing Investment 
Programme in raising standards in the private rented sector. 

 Ensure that we are protecting and investing in our existing housing stock 
and making the BEST use of our existing homes and; 

 Provide an opportunity to use these properties to provide housing options 
for a range of priority client groups, including for example care leavers, 
key workers as well as vulnerable people supported by Children’s and 
Adults’ Services. This directly links to objectives within the Council’s draft 
Housing Strategy which seeks to ensure that our most vulnerable people 
have access to safe and appropriate housing which enables them to live 
independently and maximise their potential. As such this housing will be 
linked to allocation polices for these key groups and be available on 
private rent and affordable basis as appropriate.   

o  The proposals for The Gower, St Georges and Main Road, Ketley involve bringing 
redundant historical buildings back into use, safeguarding their future whilst at the 
same time providing bespoke new living spaces. The viability of these proposals will 
be supported by the delivery of adjacent new build housing.  

o Schemes at Donnington Wood Way, former New College, former Charlton and 
Station Quarter will form part of wider schemes comprising of a range of housing 
types and tenures, seeking to deliver new, intergenerational and mutually supportive 
communities. 

o The introduction of housing into the Town Centre as part of the Station Quarter 
regeneration proposals, represents an important step change in our town, providing 
connected and accessible urban living and working space that will set the tone for 
all future housebuilding in the Centre. Most importantly it will create the accessible 
and aspirational housing that will help attract and retain younger workers within the 
high tech and digital sectors, whilst also providing accommodation for key workers 
in areas where there are problems with recruitment.   

 
The schemes will deliver: 

 

 The regeneration of a further 18.31 acres of constrained, brownfield land.  

 The refurbishment of redundant homes and buildings to create new and improved 
dwellings. 

 Accessible and adaptable housing for older people and/or those with a 
demonstrable need.  

Page 41



 Housing developments which contribute towards the Council’s carbon reduction 
agenda, protect the environment and enhance biodiversity.  

 Housing that is as far as possible future proofed to meet changing needs and 
requirements arising out of the Covid 19 pandemic.  

 Housing which continues to raise the standard of rental provision, both in terms of 
the quality of the rental homes and the landlord service.  

 Housing which secures a positive rental stream and at the same time maximises 
the gross development value (GDV) of Nuplace’s portfolio to deliver both short and 
long term financial benefits.  

 
The proposed pipeline of schemes will bring Nuplace’s portfolio to circa 786 units, 
although the exact number of additional units can only be determined once further 
detailed feasibility work has been undertaken to determine deliverability and viability and 
specific sites agreed. A progression of a scheme to planning and then construction will 
be subject to the HIP Board being satisfied that a series of conditions have been met. 
Furthermore, new schemes may be added to the pipeline at the discretion of the HIP 
Board, subject to these being contained within the approved funding envelope. An 
annual update to Cabinet will report on scheme progress and provide justification for 
schemes having been included or excluded from the pipeline.  

It should be noted that in many cases the Nuplace housing component forms part of a 
wider residential scheme where an affordable element is being provided on site by a 
Housing Association partner, enabling Nuplace to complement this with a private rented 
offer.  

5.0 FINANCE  
 
5.1 Capital allocations for the Housing Investment Programme, totalling £64.4m, are 

contained within the Council’s Service and Financial Planning Strategy. Of this, £47.2m 
has been spent as at 31 March 2020, with a further £17.2m allocated to sites in 
development. Further capital allocations totalling £48m are now requested in this 
Cabinet Report (£38.5m) and a Report dated 18th June 2020 (£9.5m). This will bring the 
total capital allocated to the Housing Investment Programme to £112.4m. Capital is 
allocated to sites based upon feasibility criteria with the rate of return for each investment 
being dependent upon a range of parameters and reviewed by the Council’s Finance 
department on a case by case basis. 

 
 The estimated cashflow of the £48m capital allocation is summarised in the table below: 
 

 £’000s 

2021/22 17,400 

2022/23 22,100 

2023/24 8,500 

Total 48,000 

  
 
5.2 The Council invests capital into the Company through either debt or equity finance and 

demands a commercial return on both. The Council’s debt funding to Nuplace is 
governed by a 30 year facility agreement, whereby interest on the debt is charged at a 
fixed rate of 5.29%, and an additional £5m extension to this agreement with interest 
charged at a fixed rate of 5.18%.These rates were set by reference to State Aid 
requirements and the level of collaterisation in the company. The further £48m capital 
allocations detailed in this report will require additional debt finance to be forwarded to 
Nuplace of circa £36m, to maintain the estimated debt to equity ratio of the company.  
The interest rate to be charged on this debt finance will be calculated in line with agreed 
procedures. Approval for the terms of the facilities agreement including the rate on debt 

Page 42



finance will be in consultation with the Section 151 Officer. The hurdle rate for the long 
term rate of return on equity finance is set at 6%. 
 

5.3 Nuplace generates income to the Council from a variety of sources, including services 
supplied and interest on debt finance. Income received over the 5 year period to 31 
March 2020 is summarised in the table below. The Council will additionally benefit from 
Council Tax and New Homes Bonus as appropriate on the housing stock delivered.  

 
£’000s Cumulative 

5 years 19/20 

Services income 1,796 

Interest income 4,876 

Total income 6,672 

  

PWLB cost of debt finance (short term cost of debt) (1,425) 

Other marginal Council costs (830) 

Net incremental Income 4,417 

 
5.4 The Nuplace portfolio additionally experiences strong capital growth, through annual 

valuations being undertaken by professional valuers. The investment portfolio has 
experienced capital growth of 17% over cost of construction to the period ended 31 
March 2020. 

 
6.0 LEGAL 

 
6.1 The Council has the power to carry out the recommendations contained within this report 

but must adhere to State Aid requirements when considering providing any loan facility 
or capital investment.  Legal advice will be given in this regard to ensure that any aid 
provided to Nuplace is State Aid compliant by being provided on commercial terms and 
in accordance with the published State Aid reference rates for the additional loan. 
 

6.2 In 2017, approval was sought to grant further decision making delegation to the Chief 
Executive in consultation with the Board to order to enable the Housing Investment 
Programme and company to operate more commercially. These additional delegations 
were not considered to contravene the Teckal exemption in any way. Delegation to the 
Chief Executive in consultation with the Board has proven to be a successful way of 
managing the operations of the programme and the company robustly and ensuring 
good governance and accountability is achieved whilst also recognising that the nature 
of the programme is such that decisions often need to be made swiftly.  
 

7.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1  As the HIP has become established, risk factors have largely reduced as assumptions 
within the original Business Case have been tested and refined. An updated risk register 
is included at Appendix 5 of the Business Case.   

  
8.0   PREVIOUS MINUTES 

 
Telford Town Centre        21 July 2009 
Housing Investment Programme Cabinet Report    25 April 2013 
Housing & Property Investment Programme Cabinet Report  24 July 2014 
Housing Investment Programme Full Council Report   11 September 2014 
Housing Investment Cabinet Report      8 January 2015 
HIP, Southwater Development Options Cabinet Report   19 March 2015 
Housing Investment Programme Update     25 March 2016 
Housing Investment Programme Update     29 June 2017 

Page 43



Housing Investment Programme     12 July 2018 
Housing Investment Programme     2 January 2020 
Local Growth Fund - Stronger Communities    18 June 2020 

 
Report prepared by Kate Callis, Service Delivery Manager - Housing Investment 
Programme  

Page 44



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Housing Investment Programme 
 

Borough of Telford & Wrekin  
 

Business Case 
 

November 2020 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 45



2 
 

Contents  
  

1. Executive Summary 
 
 

 

2. Programme Update 
 
 

 

3. Market, Policy & Regulatory Conditions 
 

 

 

4. Opportunities for Expansion & Diversification of the Programme 
 

 

 

5. Amendments to the Business Case  
 

 

 

6. Finance 
 
  

 

7. Legal Considerations 
 
 

 

8. Governance  
 
 

 

9. Risk  
 
 

 
Tables 

Table 1: Breakdown of the Nuplace Portfolio, completed or under construction 

Table 2: Voids across Nuplace sites for the year to date 2020/21 

Table 3: % Spend with local contractors on Nuplace sites 
 

Table 4: Brownfield Land Regenerated across Nuplace sites delivered or in delivery 

Table 5: Numbers of Private Rental Properties within the Borough (ONS June 2020) 

Table 6: Breakdown of Nuplace Portfolio by Property Size – September 2020 

Table 7: Private rent levels for the Borough compared to regional and national averages (ONS 
June 2020).   

Table 8: Average rent levels for general needs properties let by Nuplace Ltd 

Table 9: Pipeline of Nuplace schemes 

Table 10: Breakdown of the pipeline of Nuplace schemes 

Table 12: Brownfield land regenerated through pipeline schemes 

Table 12: Costs and Funding Sources for the Housing Investment Programme  

Page 46



3 
 

Table 13: Anticipated spend profile for pipeline schemes 

Table 14: Housing Investment Programme Modelling Assumptions  

Table 15: Housing Investment Programme viability criteria 

Table 16: Income to TWC to year end 2019/20 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix 1. Housing Investment Programme – Reports to Cabinet 

 

Appendix 2: Housing Investment Programme Board - Terms of Reference  

 

Appendix 3: Housing Management Agreement – Key Performance Indicators 

 

Appendix 4: Pipeline Sites  

 

Appendix 5: Strategic Risk Register  

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



4 
 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 Nuplace Ltd (Nuplace), the company established to deliver the Council’s Housing Investment 
Programme (HIP), was incorporated on 1st April 2015. In operation for just over five years, the 
company has delivered some significant outcomes against the objectives identified within the 
Business Case dated June 2017 and reported to Cabinet by way of an annual performance 
report (Appendix 1).  
 

1.2 To date Nuplace have delivered 329 homes across seven sites with a further 137 under 
construction or due to commence on site, bringing the total number of houses delivered, or in 
delivery to 466 of the original intended 425 properties. Of these properties, 55 are available for 
affordable rent, with the remainder being rented on the open market.  

 

1.3 In accordance with the 2017 Business case, development has latterly been focussed on the 
provision of additional larger, 3 and 4 bed properties on sites in central and northern Telford. In 
addition, at the Maple Fields site in Dothill, 19 of the 54 homes have been built to accessible 
and adaptable standards and designated for people over 55 or those with a demonstrable need.   

 

1.4 At the date of this business case, all 329 completed homes are fully occupied, reflecting the 
high level of property and management service being delivered by Nuplace. Voids are running 
at 1.88% for the year, which is well below projected levels of 3%. Undoubtedly this low turnover 
of tenants and associated void level reflects the lower mobility of occupiers during the Covid 
pandemic. However, we have also experienced a high number of enquiries for Nuplace 
properties as we enter the recovery phase and this may also reflect the increased importance 
being placed on housing quality as well as security of tenure.  

 

1.5 For the year ended 31 March 2020, the company delivered a profit of £2.087m before interest 
and taxation and £0.427m after interest and taxation, on turnover of £2.5m, which was in line 
with current expectations. Cumulatively over the 5 year period, Nuplace has reported £6.57m 
of turnover and £1.3m of profit after interest and taxation. 

 

1.6 A number of possible development sites were identified in the 2017 Business Case of which the 
sites at Coppice Court and Rowan View in Snedshill and Maple Fields in Dothill have been 
brought forward, delivering a total of 130 units. A number of the other sites were discounted on 
viability grounds.  

 

1.7 The principal aim of the Housing Investment Programme is the construction and management 
of general needs housing for private and affordable rent. In this context, the report identifies a 
further pipeline of possible sites which have the potential to grow and further diversify the 
portfolio in accordance with the original objectives of the Housing Investment Programme and 
the delivery strategy outlined in the 2017 Business Case. The pipeline of schemes also seeks 
to effectively respond to established, new and emerging Council policy relating to Housing, 
Specialist & Supported Housing, sustainability and climate change.   

 

1.8 The pipeline of schemes will also therefore seek to deliver: 
 

 Housing across the borough to ensure a sound geographical balance.   

 A range of property sizes to meet Borough wide and site specific requirements as 
identified within the Council’s draft Housing Strategy.  

 The regeneration of constrained, brownfield land.  

 The refurbishment of redundant homes and buildings to create new and improved 
dwellings. 

 Accessible and adaptable housing for older people and/or those with a demonstrable 
need on a private rent and affordable basis.  

Page 48



5 
 

 Housing developments which contribute towards the Council’s carbon reduction agenda, 
protect the environment and enhance biodiversity.  

 Housing that is as far as possible future proofed to meet changing needs and 
requirements for tenants.  

 Housing which continues to raise the standard of rental provision, both in terms of the 
quality of the rental homes and the landlord service.  

 Housing which secures as a positive rental stream and at the same time maximises the 
gross development value (GDV) of Nuplace’s portfolio to deliver both short and long term 
financial benefits.  

 
1.9 These pipeline schemes have the potential to deliver an additional 320 homes across seven 

schemes bringing Nuplace’s portfolio to 786 units. The exact number of additional units within 
the pipeline can only be determined once further feasibility work has been undertaken.  
 

1.10 In order to fund development to date as well as the pipeline of projects identified, capital 
allocations for the Housing Investment Programme totalling £64.4m, are contained within the 
Council’s Service and Financial Planning Strategy. Of this, £47.2m has been spent at 31 March 
2020, with the balance fully allocated to sites in development or to commence development and 
identified set out in Section 4.2. The Stronger Communities Cabinet Report dated 18th June 
2020 requested additional capital to fund development at Donnington Wood Way with this report 
seeking a further allocation to bring the total to £48m to facilitate the construction of an additional 
320 homes, of which approximately 87 will be affordable or specialist nature. 

 
1.11 The governance structure remains consistent with the original proposals with there being three 

Nuplace Directors reporting progress and performance to the Housing Investment Programme 
Board. However, following recent structural changes within the Council, the Director of 
Prosperity & Investment and the Director of Housing, Employment & Infrastructure have been 
appointed as Nuplace Directors alongside the Service Delivery Manager for the Housing 
Investment Programme, who continues to provide strategic direction to the programme on a 
daily basis. In addition, there have been some changes to the members of the HIP Board, with 
revised terms of reference included at Appendix 2. The HIP Board, chaired by the Chief 
Executive, meet quarterly and have been instrumental in supporting delivery of the programme 
as well as shaping thinking around future phases.  

 

1.12 To facilitate delivery, Nuplace continue to procure development and management services from 
the Council. The Housing Management Agreement, which governs the management of the 
tenancies and properties within the Nuplace portfolio, expired in February 2020. A new 
agreement has been completed which more accurately reflects operational processes and 
Nuplace’s requirements and more effectively differentiates between the services required 
during the development and operational phases. Commercial terms have also been reviewed 
accordingly.  
 

1.13 In 2019/20 the Council received a gross income of £2.039m, net of £1.2m after interest and 
associated incremental costs which is a combination of interest charges relating to the loan 
agreement with Nuplace and the provision of services to Nuplace Ltd.  Cumulatively, the Council 
has received £6.6m gross income, £4.4m net over the 5 year period. Due to the proposed 
significant expansion, additional resources will be required to deliver future phases of the 
programme.  

 

1.14 The Nuplace portfolio has seen strong capital growth, with the investment portfolio being 
revalued at a 17% increase over construction costs as at 31 March 2020. 
 

1.15 This Business Case provides an update to that approved at Cabinet in June 2017 and covers 
the following: 
 

Page 49



6 
 

 An update on the current status and performance of the programme from a development 
and lettings perspective, including an update on any activities not pursued, unanticipated 
risks encountered and any assumptions that have not been borne out. 

 An overview of current market conditions in relation to the private rented sector in 
Telford. 

 A review of the policy and regulatory framework both nationally and locally. 

 Proposals and justification for the further expansion and diversification of the 
programme. 

 Likely funding requirements from the Regeneration & Investment Budget approved at 
Full Council in March 2020. 

 
The content of this Business Case has been prepared having regard to guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State under Section 96 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 
2.0 PROGRAMME UPDATE 

 
2.1  Nuplace Ltd (Nuplace), the company established to deliver the Council’s Housing Investment 

Programme (HIP), was incorporated on 1st April 2015. In operation for just over five years the 
company has delivered some significant outcomes against the original objectives of the Housing 
Investment Programme as summarised below: 

 

 Responding to the borough’s housing need for quality rental homes and places to live 
and in doing so supporting the Council’s ambitious growth agenda and major 
investment into the Borough; 

 
To date Nuplace have:  

o Developed 329 homes across seven sites, including 42 affordable homes. 
o Commenced construction of a further 91 homes at Rowan view (Snedshill) and Maple 

Fields (Dothill), including 2 affordable and 19 accessible and adaptable dwellings 
allocated for older people or those with a demonstrable need disability.  

o Secured in principle planning consent for 46 homes at Southwater Way (Malinslee), 
including 11 affordable homes, with development due to commence before the end of 
2020.  

o Delivered a range of property sizes and tenures across these sites as summarised 
below: 

  Site 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed Total 
Adaptable / 
Accessible 

Affordable 
Units 

Handed 
Over  

Pool View (Randlay) 0 13 18 0 31 0 0 31 

Woodland Walk 
(Madeley) 

0 13 85 3 101 0 0 101 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 0 32 15 0 47 0 0 47 

Miners Walk (Madeley) 0 36 17 0 53 0 0 53 

Blossom Walk  
(Hadley) 

0 19 6 0 25 0 3 25 

Springfields  
(Newport) 

0 25 8 0 33 0 33 33 

Coppice Court  
(Snedshill – Phase 1) 

0 21 13 5 39 0 6 39 

Rowan View  
(Snedshill - Phase 2) 

0 10 21 6 37 0 0 8 

Maple Fields  
(Dothill) 

4 15 20 15 54 19 2 9 

Southwater Way 
(Malinslee) 

4 18 16 8 46 0 11 0 

Total 8 202 219 37 466 19 55 346 

Percentage 2% 43% 47% 8% 100% 4% 11.80% 77.60% 

Table 1: Breakdown of the Nuplace Portfolio, completed or under construction  

Page 50



7 
 

 

 
101 homes at Woodland Walk, Madeley  

 
The delivery of accessible and adaptable dwellings on the Maple Fields site was informed by 
extensive market research undertaken in 2018 for Nuplace by Housing LIN, who are a leading 
‘knowledge hub’ on specialist housing. This identified a number of opportunities for Nuplace 
in the delivery of specialist and supported homes with downsizer retirement housing being 
identified as a priority. Housing LIN were instrumental in informing the development mix and 
specification on the Maple Fields site with a range of properties to different accessibility 
standards being available. The launch of this scheme represents an important pilot to fully test 
appetite for this kind of housing provision on a private rent basis. Pre lets are positive with 
68% of the 19 accessible and adaptable dwellings reserved. The testimony below reflects the 
importance that this type of provision can make to people looking for opportunities to downsize 
and remain living independently for as long as possible. The pipeline of sites identified in 
Section 4.2 seeks to build on this provision, directly responding to requirements set out in the 
Council’s recently adopted Specialist & Supported Housing Strategy.  
 

Reg and his wife Barbara from Dawley were one of the first couples to reserve a specialist 
property when they were announced back in April 2020 and they have told us how renting 
a Nuplace home is the perfect solution for them in their retirement.  
 
After 18 years living in their semi-detached home Reg, 80 and Barbara, 75 can’t wait to 
move into their brand new detached bungalow before the end of the year. After 
experiencing different health issues they had decided they needed to move into a 
bungalow as using the stairs in their current home was becoming more and more difficult.   
 
Reg commented: “We’d been considering moving home for a while when we heard about 
the new Maple Fields development by Nuplace. When we spotted they had bungalows 
and ground floor properties available we became very excited at the prospect of no longer 
having to struggle when using the stairs at home. 
 
“After studying the site plan we knew we wanted a bungalow which was ideally wheelchair 
accessible and we finally decided the Birch was the property for us. Although we are yet to 
move in, the open plan living arrangements look great and the property looks extremely 
adaptable for our needs.  The fact that we have the option of installing a walk in shower is 
just the type of flexibility we need to make the home our own.”  
 

Page 51



8 
 

 
  

  

As part of and in addition to the pilot at Maple Fields, Nuplace have undertaken bespoke 
adaptions of properties to enable family members within some cases quite significant physical 
disabilities to remain living independently and with dignity in their homes. 

 

Nuplace are in the process of adapting three properties (1 at Rowan View and 2 at Maple 
Fields) specifically to meet the identified needs of tenants, utilising Disabled Facilities Grant 
funding.  Adaptions include a bespoke fully wheelchair accessible kitchen, through floor lifts, 
ceiling track hoists and wheelchair accessible wet rooms.  

 

 Raising the standard of rental provision, both in terms of the quality of the rental homes 
and the quality of the landlord service, in the Borough;  
 

Providing a high quality housing product continues to be a key priority for the housing 
investment programme. Using feedback from earlier phases of Nuplace’s developments 
received from tenants and the development, property management and maintenance teams, 
a number of specification enhancements have been introduced on more recent schemes at 
Coppice Court, Rowan View, Maple Fields and Southwater Way.  These include upgrades to 
flooring, taps, sinks, kitchen units, fitted appliances and lighting to enhance the look and feel 
of the dwellings, ensuring we are able to command good rents and sustain tenancies. At the 
same time, these improvements should reduce our expenditure on both reactive and planned 
maintenance moving forward.  
 
In response to the Council’s commitment to become carbon neutral across Council operations 
by 2030, with an aspiration to do the same Borough wide, Nuplace are installing photo voltaic 
panels and electric car charging points to all homes being delivered as part of the Southwater 
Way scheme. This will not only reduce carbon emissions but reduce energy bills for tenants 
and work to address fuel poverty.    
 
These improvements ensure the homes being delivered by Nuplace are continuously evolving 
to meet emerging requirements and fulfil customer needs, ensuring that it remains a desirable 
rental product.  
 

Page 52



9 
 

The delivery of quality schemes is underpinned by quality design and workmanship. . In 
September 2020, our contractor Lovell won the award for ‘Best high volume new housing 
development’ and were also shortlisted for ‘Best Social or Affordable New Housing 
Development’ in the LABC Regional Building Excellence Awards for their work on Coppice 
Court, Snedshill. They perpetuate a solution focussed approach and in doing so continue to 
deliver a high quality product on time and to budget, with their response to the Covid pandemic 
being exemplary.  
 
As the properties begin to age, a robust planned maintenance programme has been 
developed and costed to ensure that there is a sufficient sinking fund to enable properties to 
be properly maintained. Requirements are captured within the updated Housing Management 
Agreement and will be reviewed alongside condition surveys.  
 
Reactive maintenance continues to be carried out predominantly in house, with the use of 
external contractors where required to support at busy times and to provide specialist services. 
All efforts are made to return the properties to “as new” on re-let.  
 
This high quality of specification, workmanship and maintenance supports a continuing high 
level of demand for properties with void levels across all of our sites being 1.88% cumulatively 
to April 2020, well below projected levels.  The Covid pandemic has undoubtedly impacted 
upon tenant’s mobility, meaning that voids in year are lower than previously experienced. 
Cumulative void levels across all sites are summarised below: 
 

 

Site 

 

Void % 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 1.94 

Pool View (Randlay) 0.94 

Springfields (Newport) 0.85 

Blossom Walk (Hadley) 1.86 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 4.12 

Miners Walk (Madeley) 1.22 

Coppice Court (Snedshill) 0.96 

Average 1.88 

 Table 2: Voids across Nuplace sites for the year to date 2020/21 

 

Our site at Coppice Court in Snedshill for 39 dwellings, was fully let off plan within 4 weeks of 
launch in 2017. The adjacent site at Rowan View, comprising of 37 dwellings alongside 39 
new homes for Housing Association whg is also fully pre let, with handovers of properties 
having commenced in October 2020.  

 

As the Nuplace brand has gained traction, we have become increasingly aware of the 
importance placed by tenants on the fact the company is wholly owned by the Council and the 
confidence this gives in relation to the product, service and tenancy arrangements. This has 
been increasingly important throughout the Covid pandemic, as members of the Housing 
Management Team have worked collaboratively with tenants to deal with their individual 
circumstances. In response to this, over the past two years, work has been ongoing to ensure 
that all marketing literature clearly references the Council’s role in the programme.  

 

 

Page 53



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company has a documented debt write off policy, and debts are only written off with the 
approval of the Company Directors, as such debt write off levels remain low. 

 

We continue to see a high level of tenant loyalty for Nuplace, with tenants regularly moving 
between Nuplace sites, reflecting the high regard placed on the product and the management 
service.  

 

At the outset of the programme, a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) were 
established through which to monitor the performance of the housing and property 
management service including level of rent collection, voids, bad debts etc. These were 
reviewed and updated a part of the review of the Housing Management Agreement in 2020. 
Performance against the current KPIs is summarised in Appendix 3. 

   

 Stimulating local economic growth through job creation during both the construction 
and operational phases of the Programme;  
 

Opportunities to stimulate local economic growth continues to be a key objective of the 
programme. By awarding a pipeline of work to a single contractor, Lovell Partnerships Ltd, it 
has been possible to deliver positive outcomes in relation to this as well as other social added 
value. A primary objective of the programme was to develop a local supply chain and to 
increase Borough based spend wherever possible with on average 58% of contract value 
being spent with contractors within a 30km radius of the scheme, equating to £32.5m.  

Site 

Contract Sum     
(£m) 

Spend within 
30km radius    

(£m) 

Spend 
within 30km 

radius 

Pool View (Randlay) 3.56 2.25 63% 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 10.62 6.19 58% 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 11.65 8.04 69% 

Miners Walk  (Madeley) 6.48 4.19 65% 

Blossom Walk (Hadley 2.89 1.84 64% 

Springfields (Newport) 3.63 2.49 69% 

Coppice Court (Snedshill) 4.66 2.92 63% 

Rowan View (Snedshill) 4.97 1.01 20% 

Maple Fields (Dothill) 6.86 3.57 52% 

Total/Average 55.31 32.50 58% 

                    Table 3: % Spend with local contractors on Nuplace sites 

 

Page 54



11 
 

 Other added value, delivered since the last Business Case in 2017 or is in the pipeline is 
summarised below:  
 

• Lovell donated £1,000 towards the knife angel project, helping to transport children from 
various schools to visit the knife angel and learn about the devastating impact of knife 
crime.  

• ‘Hands on Help’ Project - Lovell & Nuplace offered not for profit organisations in the 
Telford area an opportunity to apply for £5,000 worth of work provided by Lovell. The 
winning applicants were Sutton Hill Church where a bespoke fire door was fitted and 
Donnington Community Hub where Lovell painted their large community rooms painted. 

• Sutton Hill Funday: Lovell attended the community event and provided information on the 
company and the Construction Industry as well as P.P.E to allow children to dress like a 
builder and have their photos taken.  

• Donnington Community Hub Summer Fair: Lovell attended and provided children’s 
games, prizes and arts & craft material. 

• Scouts: Lovell donated wooden pallets for their annual bonfire event as well as two tons 
of topsoil for their vegetable patch project.  

• Southall School: Lovell donated hoarding boards to the school to support pupils to practice 
hanging wallpaper and painting. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



12 
 

 
 
The quality of Lovell’s workmanship and site management is evidence in their fact that they 
have achieved excellent scores in all categories against the Considerate Constructors 
Scheme, across all Nuplace sites. In addition, in August 2020, Lovell and Nuplace were 
awarded ‘Winner’ in the LABC Building Excellence awards for their development at Coppice 
Court with their outstanding construction and workmanship being recognised.  
 
Nuplace continue to support education and training both directly and through the supply chain 
as a result of their work on Nuplace schemes with recent schemes at Coppice Court 
(Snedshill) and Maple Fields (Dothill) resulting in a total of 4 higher level apprenticeships and 
20 subcontract apprenticeships. The involvement of Lovell in the delivery of the scheme at 
Donnington Wood Way, which will extend to 2025, provides further opportunity to build on this 
added value.   
.  

 Regenerating brownfield and stalled sites;  
 

The regeneration of brownfield land remains an important focus of the programme with eight 
of the ten developments having been delivered on sites which were previously used for 
industry, mining, education and parking. 
 
On completion of the latest development at Southwater Way, the programme will have 
successfully brought 28.56 acres of brownfield land back into use.  
 

Site 
Brownfield land brought 

back into use (acres) 

Pool View (Randlay) 2.35 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 6.55 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 3.78 

Miners Walk (Madeley) 4.77 

Blossom Walk (Hadley) 1.19 

Springfields (Newport) 1.33 

Maple Fields 5.56 

Southwater Way  3.04 

Total 28.57 

 Table 4: Brownfield Land Regenerated across Nuplace sites delivered or in delivery  
 
Many of the sites on which development has and is being undertaken have been stalled for 
some considerable time and had become a blight on local communities as well as being the 
focus for antisocial behaviour. The high quality developments that Nuplace have delivered 
have added real value to these communities through physical regeneration but also by raising 
the standard of accommodation generally and the rented sector specifically.  
 

 Enhancing our knowledge and expertise of housing delivery and management through 
the use of in-house resources to undertake the development, management and 
maintenance of the portfolio of rental properties;  
 

Officers from across the Council continue to be engaged in work to support the activities of 
the Housing Investment Programme. Nuplace buy back a range of services from the Council 
including; legal, finance and marketing support, programme and project management to 
deliver the developments and tenancy, property and estate management and maintenance 
services, once the properties are operational. To the end of 2019/20, the Council had received 
cumulative gross income totalling £6.6mm through a combination of interest charged and the 
provision of services to Nuplace.  
 

Page 56



13 
 

The number of maintenance calls are increasing as the individual properties and estates come 
out of their defect liability period.  The number of operatives and the skills required for the 
maintenance of the nuplace properties is continually being reviewed by the property 
maintenance team to ensure a quality service continues to be delivered and the nuplace 
standard is maintained. 
 

The recent review of the Housing Management Agreement (HMA), which governs the 
provision of services from the council to Nuplace provided opportunity to: 

 Refine the document to reflect operational processes. 
 Amend the scope of services to reflect Nuplace’s requirements. 
 Renegotiate commercial terms to reflect known requirements.  

 
The renegotiated HMA extends for a further three years to March 2023, with an opportunity to 
extend for a further two years. The Council has continued to deliver a high quality service.   
 
 

 Generating a long term income stream for the Council that can contribute towards the 
protection of frontline services otherwise affected by budgetary constraints;  
 

A summary of income generated since the programme began, as well as forecast figures for 
2020/21 are included within Section 6.0. 

 
2.2 Overall, the programme is performing very well against the original priorities, delivery homes 

which directly meet housing need whilst delivering significant added value. In this context, and 
following a review of market conditions, opportunities for expansion of the programme have 
been identified. A summary of market conditions, which have informed proposals, is included 
within Section 3.0 below. 

 
 
3.0 MARKET, POLICY & REGULATORY CONDITIONS 

 
3.1 Market Conditions 

 
 Extensive market research was carried out by Savills to underpin the original Business Case 

and this was supplemented by the Council’s own internal team’s knowledge on the national, 
regional and local housing rental market. Many of the findings of this research are still relevant 
but the private rented sector continues to change and develop with it being estimated that more 
than 20% of homes in the borough are now privately rented. Between March 2018 and March 
2019 alone there was a 13% growth in the number of rental properties within the Borough, with 
this growth being experienced across all property sizes.  

 
As such the private rented sector plays an increasingly important role in meeting the housing 
needs of the borough providing a range of different housing needs including short term flexible 
lettings to assist with mobility and increasingly provides quality homes on a long term basis. The 
sector is diverse and ranges from single property owners to portfolio landlords. Most recently 
there has been a growth in large scale private rented provision through accommodation funded 
by institutional investment.  

  
3.1.1 Property Type 
 

In Telford & Wrekin, two and three bedroom properties continue to make up the highest 
proportion of private rentals, comprising 1,170 (76%) of the total 1,540 rentals based on data 
from June 2020. Growth has been experienced across all property sizes since 2014, despite 
there being some in-year fluctuations. Average annual growth rates since 2011 are provided 
in the table below with the greatest growth being experienced in two bedroom properties.   

Page 57



14 
 

 

 
 Table 5: Numbers of Private Rental Properties within the Borough (ONS June 2020) 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  
 

Table 6: Breakdown of Nuplace Portfolio by Property Size – September 2020 

 

Nuplace’s portfolio is also heavily weighted towards two and three bed homes, with this 
property type making up 90% of the total number of properties held. However in accordance 
with the requirements set out in the 2017 Business Case, there has been a growth in the 
number four bed properties from 1% to 8% as well as a small increase in the number of one 
bed properties to meet the changing needs of renters and provide resilience in the portfolio. 

We are not aware of any other accessible and adaptable dwellings being built for private rent 
across the Borough. As such the pilot of 19 new homes at Maple Fields represents an 
important pilot study into demand for this type of provision.  

3.1.2   Rent Levels 
 
 The increase in demand for private rented property is reflected in rental increases as evidenced 

in Table 1 below. Whilst rental growth falls short of that experienced across the West Midlands 
and nationally it has shown a consistent upward trend over the past eight years with this 
percentage increase being greatest for larger properties.   

Year 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed Total

2011 187 459 446 125 1,217           

2012 145 399 368 123 1,035           

2013 118 328 283 115 844              

2014 111 296 286 101 794              

2015 142 425 394 131 1,092           

2016 170 480 430 140 1,220           

2017 160 460 430 120 1,170           

2018 180 510 490 130 1,310           

2019 200 610 520 150 1,480           

2020 210 630 540 160 1,540           

Annual Growth 1.54% 4.66% 2.63% 3.50% 3.32%

% (2020 figures) 14% 41% 35% 10% 100%

Site 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed Total 

Pool View (Randlay) 0 13 18 0 31 

Woodland Walk (Madeley) 0 13 85 3 101 

The Oaklands (Dawley) 0 32 15 0 47 

Miners Walk  (Madeley) 0 36 17 0 53 

Blossom Walk (Hadley 0 19 6 0 25 

Springfields (Newport) 0 25 8 0 33 

Coppice Court (Snedshill) 0 21 13 5 39 

Rowan View (Snedshill) 0 10 21 6 37 

Maple Fields (Dothill) 4 15 20 15 54 

Southwater Way (Malinslee) 4 18 16 8 46 

Total 8 202 219 37 466 

Percentage 2% 43% 47% 8% 100% 

Page 58



15 
 

 

 
 Table 7: Private rent levels for the Borough compared to regional and national averages (ONS June 2020).   

 
 This continued growth is predominantly due to affordability but also an increase in supply arising 

out of the continued proliferation of buy to let mortgages as well as choice, as employment 
becomes increasingly mobile, people look for more flexible accommodation options. The 
demographic of renters is also changing with over half the renters now being families as 
opposed to single people or couples. Furthermore half of renters are now classified as “high 
income”, whereas historically renting was associated with lower income groups. This change in 
renter demography is likely to account for the increase in rents being highest for larger 
properties.  

 
Nuplace have, and continue to command premium rents for properties due to the high quality 
of the product and management service, with rents being circa 12% higher than the Borough 
average for similar sized properties. However, rents are in line with other new build private rent 
products available on the market and being delivered by Simple Life Homes and Wise Living as 
an example.  
 
 

 
Table 8: Average rent levels for general needs properties let by Nuplace Ltd 

 
 3.2 National Policy and Regulatory Context  

The national policy context for housing is complex and changing with key themes summarised 
below:  

• There continues to be a very strong emphasis on building more new homes across 
the country. 

• A series of planning and housing policy measures aimed at all types of provider 
are seeking to increase and speed up new housing delivery.  

T&W W-Mids England T&W

W-

Mids England T&W W-Mids

Englan

d T&W

W-

Mids

Englan

d

2012 421   434       594       520   527     664       593   617      763      825   953      1,333 

2013 426   438       622       528   533     689       611   629      776      855   983      1,356 

2014 435   450       625       530   550     693       619   646      789      839   1,033  1,412 

2015 440   468       657       542   567     727       636   662      831      893   1,069  1,511 

2016 446   497       719       545   597     780       637   688      887      873   1,081  1,570 

2017 446   489       725       548   594     791       639   694      902      878   1,099  1,617 

2018 448   512       707       548   617     772       645   709      881      881   1,088  1,548 

2019 455   514       731       557   623     800       655   723      916      898   1,111  1,611 

2020 460   533       701       569   639     785       669   741      900      995   1,300  1,850 

Ave. Annual Increase 1.16% 2.85% 2.25% 1.18% 2.66% 2.28% 1.60% 2.51% 2.24% 2.58% 4.55% 4.85%

1 Bedroom 2 Bedrooms 3 Bedrooms 4+ Bedrooms

Average £ Average £ Average £ Average £

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed

Woodlands Madeley 608         710     788       

Pool  View Hadley 618         719     

Matlock Avenue Dawley 641         705     

Miners  Walk Madeley 626         703     

Blossom Walk Hadley 611         718     

Springfields Newport 644         737     

Coppice Court Snedshi l l 644         779     1,000    

Rowan View Snedshi l l 652         792     974       

Maple Fields Dothi l l 645         820     980       

Southwater Way Mal ins lee 525         627         795     960       

Average 525         632         748     941       

Average Rents  (£)

Page 59



16 
 

• New and emerging policies are focussing on improving housing design and quality, 
physical accessibility, environmental performance and safety.  

• A series of measures are to be introduced to help protect consumer rights in 
housing. 

Furthermore, the growth in the private rented sector means that it has recently attracted 
increased political, policy and regulatory attention. Concerns about lack of affordability, 
inadequate management and maintenance practices, insecurities associated with short-term 
tenancies and no-fault evictions have come into sharper focus. Governments within the UK 
have responded differentially to these issues with Westminster having taken no action directed 
at affordability as yet, despite ongoing political pressure to do so. However, there are clear 
signs that the direction of travel for policy in England is towards accepting the need for more 
active policy intervention. It will be important, as Nuplace look to further grow their portfolio, 
that due regard is given to these potential policy and regulatory changes. However it is 
anticipated that any such changes are likely to provide further support for the high quality 
tenancy and property management and maintenance approach already adopted by Nuplace.  

3.3 Local Policy Context 
 

The Council’s recently launched a draft Housing Strategy 2020-2025 identifying a number of 
objectives which are of relevance to the Housing Investment Programme.  

 
Objective 1 focuses on the creation of sustainable, accessible, affordable and integrated 
communities and seeks to do this by promoting high standards in all new build homes. Nuplace 
is specifically referend as a means by which this objective can be achieved. 

 
Objective 2 focuses on making the BEST use of our existing homes by championing high 
standards in the private rented sector and providing a strong role model through Nuplace. This 
Objective also seeks to support the positive redevelopment and improvement of existing 
homes, accepting that 80% of the homes we will have in 20 years’ time are here today. As 
such, investing in and protecting our existing housing stock is a critical component of borough 
wide regeneration as well as key to addressing climate change and reduce fuel poverty. 

 
Objective 3 seeks to provide homes to support and empower our most vulnerable people, 
enabling them to live independently for longer. This Objective is underpinned by the Council’s 
recently adopted Specialist & Supported Accommodation Strategy which sets out in more 
detail the housing requirements for a range of vulnerable groups. This Strategy specifically 
references the needs for additional care ready housing for older people across all tenures 
including private rent.  

 
The Council’s draft Housing Strategy and Specialist Supported Accommodation Strategy 
provide clear policy support for the expansion of Nuplace as well as clear guidance as to how 
this expansion could and should be focussed.  

 
3.4 Specialist & Supported Housing  

 
A growing number of people – at all stages of their life – are now living in a home that is rented 
privately. There is an increasing body of evidence to support a significant growth in the number 
older people selling up to pay off debts, boost retirement income, help children or letting the 
family home to downsize, thus entering the private rental market at a later stage. However, 
there is currently a significant undersupply in age specific private rental accommodation to 
meet this increasing market demand. 

 
Research into opportunities for Nuplace to provide specialist accommodation for vulnerable 
groups on a private rent basis was undertaken by Housing LIN in 2018. Housing LIN are a 
leading ‘knowledge hub’ on specialist housing and work across the sector to promote best 
practice in the delivery of a range of specialist housing types and tenures. Their 

Page 60

https://www.telford.gov.uk/downloads/file/14970/draft_housing_strategy_2020_-_2025
https://democracy.telford.gov.uk/documents/s5486/Specialist%20and%20Supported%20Accommodation%20Strategy.pdf


17 
 

comprehensive research reviewed current and future demand for specialist accommodation 
for older people, for market rent in particular and for sale alongside an analysis of demand for 
other types of specialist accommodation for other client groups/cohorts including:  

o ‘Step down’ accommodation.  
o Housing for people with physical disabilities.  
o Housing for people with learning disabilities.  
o Housing for people living with dementia.  

 
The report concluded that “the current supply of older people’s housing and limited development 
activity, in the context of the assessed future demand for older people’s housing, indicates that 
there will be unmet demand for a range of types of older people’s housing, particularly in relation 
to market rent tenures.” 
 
‘Downsizer’ retirement housing was identified as a priority area with the target market being 
younger than the traditional customer base for retirement housing with this model needing to 
combine the quality and features of mainstream general needs housing with the functionality of 
specialist housing, particularly in terms of accessibility and support services. Alongside this, it 
was recognised that opportunities exist to deliver accessible housing which can enable people 
with restricted mobility, care or health needs to live independently but does not necessarily have 
any age or care related restriction on its occupancy. 
 

3.5 The Impact of Covid 19 
 

The Covid pandemic has impacted on every part of people’s lives and it is also likely to continue 
to have a profound effect in the medium and long term, leading to lasting change in terms of 
how people view and carry out their lives. As a result of the pandemic, new ways of working 
and living have emerged which will undoubtedly have an impact on the housing market.  
 
The immediate impact of the pandemic on Nuplace involved the closure of two Nuplace sites 
under construction as well as an increased level of overdue debt as people struggled to make 
payment in light of their changing circumstances.  
 
The two Nuplace sites under construction remained closed for circa 5 weeks resulting in a 12-
14 week delay to construction overall, as programmes were extended to allow for effective social 
distancing measures to be implemented. This delay led to increasing interest charges on 
construction being incurred by Nuplace but these have been contained within project 
contingencies.   
 
For Nuplace tenants, support was immediately offered and the Housing Management Team 
worked proactively to set up payment plans to ensure rents were adjusted to manageable levels 
until people could access alternative forms of financial support. Overall the impact on tenants 
and ultimate rental income and level of overdue debt has been lower than expected, and there 
is no doubt that the Council backed status of Nuplace provided additional security during this 
uncertain time.  
 
As we move forward and consider new development opportunities there will be a need to 
consider how new ways of living and working will impact on people’s requirements within the 
home in terms of digital connectively and space requirements as well as links to amenity space 
and community hubs within the local environment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



18 
 

4.0 OPPORTUNITIES FOR EXPANSION & DIVERSIFICATION OF THE PROGRAMME 

4.1 Development Objectives 

A review of market, policy and regulatory conditions suggest that demand for good quality 
private rented homes looks set to remain a key component of the housing market, offering 
opportunities for further expansion alongside diversification into downsizer, accessible and 
adaptable dwellings.  

Development proposals will need to be considered on a site by site basis but collectively the 
pipeline of schemes will seek to:  

 Deliver a geographically balanced portfolio by delivering developments that provide 
Nuplace housing options for people across the Borough.  

 Deliver diversity in terms of the size of properties delivered, responding to the changing 
profile of renters including the demand for larger, more executive type homes, both 
three and four beds.  

 Deliver homes to improved accessibility standards with a focus on downsizer 
properties, enabling people to live independently for longer.   

 Deliver homes which contribute positively towards the Council’s and the Borough’s 
carbon reduction commitments, whilst also addressing fuel poverty.  

 Improve the borough’s existing housing stock through refurbishment opportunities 

 Repurpose vacant buildings and stalled sites to deliver homes alongside wider 
regeneration benefits.  

 Deliver a positive rental stream and at the same time maximise the gross development 
value (GDV) of Nuplace’s portfolio to deliver both short and long term benefits.  

 
4.2 Pipeline Schemes 
 

In response to these development objectives, a pipeline of schemes has been identified as 
summarised in the table below. Sites boundaries, indicative layouts (where available) and a 
more detailed description of development proposals are included within Appendix 4. Feasibility 
work has been undertaken on these sites to varying degrees with a view to determining 
deliverability and viability.  
 

Site Name 

Number 
of 

Dwellings 
Land 

Ownership Status  
Capital 
Cost (£) Est Start 

Est 
Completion  

Donnington Wood Way, Muxton 70 TWC Brownfield 
       
10,500,000  Jul-21 Apr-23 

Telford & Wrekin Homes  100 TWC Brownfield 
         
13,000,000  Jan-21 Dec-23 

Former New College, Wellington 21 TWC Brownfield 
         
3,400,000  Oct-21 Oct-22 

Former Charlton, Dothill 40 TWC Brownfield 
         
6,100,000  Jul-21 Nov-22 

The Gower, St Georges 19 TWC Brownfield 
         
3,400,000  Jul-21 Jul-22 

Main Road, Ketley Bank 20 TWC Brownfield 
         
3,100,000  Jan-22 Jan-23 

Station Quarter, Telford Town Centre  50 TWC Brownfield 
         
8,500,000  Mar-22 Mar-24 

  320     
       
48,000,000      

Table 9: Pipeline of Nuplace schemes 

 A proposed development mix for each of the sites is detailed below, including proposed levels 
of affordable dwellings, accessible and adaptable dwellings as well as those embodying 
carbon reduction measures. It should be noted that in many cases the Nuplace housing 

Page 62



19 
 

component forms part of a wider residential scheme where an affordable element is being 
provided on site by a Housing Associated partner, enabling Nuplace to complement this with 
a private rented offer.  

Site Name 1 bed 2 bed  3 bed 4 bed  Total   
Affordable 
Dwellings 

Specialist 
Dwellings 

Carbon 
Reduction 
Measures 

Donnington Wood Way, 
Muxton 6 25 24 15 70   (190*) 20 70 

Telford & Wrekin 
Homes   10 40 40 10 100   50 0 0 

Former New College, 
Wellington   8 12 1 21   (74*) 3 21 

Former Charlton, 
Dothill   18 16 6 40   0 6 40 

The Gower, St Georges 6 13     19   0 0 0 

Main Road, Ketley Bank   12 8   20   5 3 18 

Station Quarter, Telford 
Town Centre  15 35     50   0 0 50 

Total 

27 136 80 27 320   

319 of which 55 
will be directly 

delivered by 
Nuplace 32 199 

% 10% 50% 30% 10% 100%   17% 12% 74% 

          
Existing Portfolio 8 202 219 37 466   55 19 46 

Total 35 338 299 64 786   110 51 245 

% 5% 46% 41% 9% 100%   14% 7% 33% 

Table 10: Breakdown of the pipeline of Nuplace schemes 

*Units to be delivered via Housing Association partner as part of wider site delivery and therefore don’t form part 
of Nuplace future portfolio 

The proposed pipeline of schemes will bring Nuplace’s portfolio to circa 786 units, although 
the exact number of additional units within the pipeline can only be determined once further 
feasibility work has been undertaken.  

The development of these sites is considered to be consistent with the original objectives for 
the programme as summarised below:  

 Responding to the borough’s housing need for quality rental homes and places to live 
and in doing so supporting the Council’s ambitious growth agenda and major 
investment into the Borough; 
 
The sites identified above directly respond to market intelligence as well as the housing 
requirements outlined in the Council’s draft Housing Strategy and Specialist & Supported 
Housing Strategy and will meet the needs of a range of prospective occupiers: 
 
o The proposals continue to deliver a large number of two and three bed properties, 

acknowledging that this is where demand is greatest, but at the same time seek to 
diversify the portfolio through the introduction of more one and four bed properties.  

o The introduction of more accessible and adaptable dwellings at four of the proposed sites, 
builds on the pilot at Maple Fields and directly responds to recommendations made by 
Housing LIN and embodied within the Council’s Specialist & Supported Accommodation 
Strategy. These new homes will free up dwellings which are currently under capacity and 
provide occupiers with a desirable alternative which allows them to remain living 
independently at home for longer.  

Page 63



20 
 

o The establishment of Telford & Wrekin Homes is an important diversification for the 
Housing Investment Programme which involves acquiring, refurbishing and renting out 
properties at locations across the borough. This proposal will: 

 Further disseminate the good work of the Housing Investment Programme in 
raising standards in the private rented sector. 

 Ensure that we are protecting and investing in our existing housing stock and 
making the BEST use of our existing homes and; 

 Provide an opportunity to use these properties to provide housing options for a 
range of priority client groups, including for example care leavers, key workers 
as well as vulnerable people supported by Children’s and Adults’ Services. This 
directly links to objectives within the Council’s draft Housing Strategy which 
seeks to ensure that our most vulnerable people have access to safe and 
appropriate housing which enables them to live independently and maximise 
their potential. As such this housing will be linked to allocation polices for these 
key groups and be available on private rent and affordable basis as 
appropriate.   

o The proposals for The Gower, St Georges and Main Road, Ketley Bank involve bringing 
redundant historical buildings back into use, safeguarding their future whilst at the same 
time providing bespoke new living spaces. The viability of these proposals will be 
supported by the delivery of adjacent new build housing.  

o Schemes at Donnington Wood Way, former New College, former Charlton and Station 
Quarter will form part of wider schemes comprising of a range of housing types and 
tenures, seeking to deliver new, intergenerational and mutually supportive communities. 

o The introduction of housing into the Town Centre as part of the Station Quarter 
regeneration proposals represents an important step change in our town, providing 
connected and accessible urban living and working space that will set the tone for all 
future housebuilding in the Centre. Most importantly it will create the accessible and 
aspirational housing that will help attract and retain younger workers within the high tech 
and digital sectors, whilst also providing accommodation for key workers in areas where 
there are problems with recruitment.   

 

 Raising the standard of rental provision, both in terms of the quality of the rental homes 
and the quality of the landlord service, in the Borough;  
 
As stated above, the development proposals reflect an aspiration to diversify the portfolio and 
respond directly to a changing rental market. Feedback from tenants on their properties is 
continually used to refine specifications on new developments to ensure continuous 
improvement. The Re-Nuplace proposal presents an opportunity for the Nuplace’s high 
standards of property and tenancy management to be more effectively dispersed to other 
areas of the Borough with the properties identified for acquisition extending from Newport in 
the North to Coalbrookdale in the South.   
 
Regular monitoring of property and tenancy management is undertaken and processes 
updated to ensure that these services are efficient and effective. The recently updated 
Housing Management Agreement captures best practice developed over the past 5 years of 
operation. The introduction of a new property management system, currently under 
procurement, will assist with this.  

 

 Stimulating local economic growth through job creation during both the construction 
and operational phases of the Programme;  
 
As set out above, the added value delivered through the long term partnership with Lovell on 
the Housing Investment Programme has been significant. However, the nature of the pipeline 
schemes is such that a single delivery route is not possible, with sites needing to be procured 
and delivered in a range of ways.  
 

Page 64



21 
 

The appointment of Lovell to deliver the mixed tenure housing scheme off Donnington Wood 
Way presents a fantastic opportunity to deliver some real added value due to the scale and 
length of the development programme. Opportunities to derive benefits in terms of supply 
chain engagement, community involvement and training and apprenticeships will continue to 
be pursued wherever possible on all other schemes.   
 

 Regenerating brownfield and stalled sites;  
 
The regeneration of brownfield sites continues to be a key priority of the programme, with all 
of the pipeline sites identified bring located on brownfield land, providing the opportunity to 
regenerate a further 18.31 acres.  
 
 

 Scheme Acres 

Donnington Wood Way, Muxton 8.11 

Telford & Wrekin Homes  

Former New College, Wellington 2.17 

Former Charlton, Dothill 3.01 

The Gower, St Georges 1.18 

Main Road, Ketley Bank 1.63 

Station Quarter, Telford Town Centre  2.20 

Total 18.31 

        Table 11: Brownfield land regenerated through pipeline schemes 
 

It is important to acknowledge that the delivery of homes on these brownfield sites brings with 
it additional challenges from a practical as well as a viability perspective. This is compounded 
when trying to achieve the delivery of increased affordable, specialist and sustainable homes 
which have an impact on both cost and revenue. As such the development mixes proposed 
for each of these sites seek to acknowledge site specific constraints and deliver schemes 
which are viable on a standalone basis whilst maximising added value across the pipeline 
programme.  
 
To support delivery and maximise added value, opportunities to secure external grant funding, 
through the LEP, West Midlands Combined Authority or other means will be pursued wherever 
possible. Telford & Wrekin Council have been successful in securing LEP funding as part of 
the £7m Stronger Communities programme to deliver enabling works at the site off Donnington 
Wood Way. This funding will address viability issues associated with the brownfield nature of 
site, allowing the scheme to deliver added value in terms of the development mix, 
environmental credentials etc.  
 

 Enhancing our knowledge and expertise of housing delivery and management through 
the use of in-house resources to undertake the development, management and 
maintenance of the portfolio of rental properties; 
 
Further expansion of the programme will safeguard jobs in both property development and 
management as well as have the potential to create additional roles. Resource requirements 
will continue to be monitored by the HIP Board and additional resources put in place as 
required.  
 

 Generating a long term income stream for the Council that can contribute towards the 
protection of frontline services otherwise affected by budgetary constraints;  
 
The latest pipeline of schemes are focussed on maintaining and de-risking the Council’s 
income stream by looking to provide a suitable mix of properties in terms of type, size and 
tenure in a range of locations and at the same providing a choice of housing which meets local 

Page 65



22 
 

demand. Preliminary viability appraisals have been undertaken across all sites prior to their 
inclusion in the pipeline of schemes and these will be further refined over the coming months.  
 
In 2017, delegation was granted to the Housing Investment Programme Board to review and 
include sites within the programme, only once detailed feasibility work and viability 
assessments have been undertaken. Viability is assessed on a site by site basis with individual 
sites only being incorporated into the programme when pre-determined return on investment 
thresholds are met. Investment thresholds will be subject to HIP Board approval and will 
include rental yield, return on gross development value etc. 
 
This approach has worked well, with approval being sought from the Board before schemes 
are submitted for planning and again before land transfer, the release of funds from the 
Council to Nuplace and the commencement of works on site.  
 
As such it is proposed that the Board continue to have the same level of decision making 
powers in relation to this latest pipeline of schemes, with annual reports being brought to 
Cabinet to update on progress. A copy of the latest Terms of Reference for the Board is 
included at Appendix 2. 
 

5.0 AMENDMENTS TO THE BUSINESS CASE  
 
  The high level principles and vision for the Programme, set out in the preceding paragraphs, 

remain very much in line with the original Business Case, as do the roles of both the Council, 
as sole shareholder, and Nuplace Ltd, as the delivery vehicle for the Housing Investment 
Programme.  

 
5.1 The Business Idea 
  

 The principal aim of the company remains the development of properties for private and also 
affordable rent across a number of sites.  

 A suite of possible future development sites have been identified taking the total number of 
houses for development to circa 786 from the originally envisaged 425.  

 Full Council approval for additional funding to deliver these sites has been granted as part of 
the budget strategy with individual sites only being taken forward subject to HIP Board 
approval upon satisfaction of a range of project specific conditions.  

 Funding arrangements will be in accordance with the original business case, although it is 
recommended that delegated authority is granted to the HIP Board to agree adjustments to 
the onward lending rate to Nuplace, subject to any adjustments being State Aid compliant.  

 
5.2 The Strategic Case 
 
 As set out in Section 3, market conditions remain supportive of the continued development of 

rental accommodation. Further opportunities to diversify the portfolio in terms of geographic 
location and property type and strengthen the portfolio through for example improvements to 
build specification and incorporation of carbon reduction technology will avoid an over 
commitment on a discrete property base and at the same time ensure that the portfolio is 
adequately futureproofed.  

 
5.3 The Economic Case  
 
 A Company limited by shares wholly owned by the Council remains the preferred and most 

appropriate delivery vehicle for the Housing Investment Programme. However, a number of the 
pipeline schemes identified, including sites off Donnington Wood Way, former New College, 
former Charlton and Station Quarter are intended to be delivered as part of wider mixed tenure 
housing schemes and regeneration projects. The delivery structure for each of these schemes 

Page 66



23 
 

will vary with homes being delivered by means of traditional design & build contracts, through 
development or golden brick agreements or on a turnkey basis. However in all instances the 
contracting party will be Nuplace Ltd. This flexibility allows Nuplace to expand its portfolio on 
sites where a wholly private rental offer would have been inappropriate and ensures a diverse 
tenure mix is delivered in response to housing need.   

 
 There are existing delegations in place to the HIP Board to enable Nuplace to pursue joint 

developments with third parties, where these are in line with the original objectives of Business 
Case and can be delivered within the parameters of existing Council approvals for investment. 

 
5.4 The Commercial Case  
 
 Assumptions made in the original Business Case of January 2015 and subsequent Business 

Cases, regarding the delivery vehicle and funding route remain valid and relevant. A full 
appraisal of the private rented market in Telford has been conducted when preparing proposals 
for the next phase of the Housing Investment Programme as set out in Section 3.0. Detailed 
research into supply and demand for supported housing in the context of the local market, has 
also been commissioned to help inform decisions around opportunities to diversify Nuplace’s 
asset base.  

 
 
6.0  FINANCE 

  The current capital cost estimates and anticipated funding sources approved within the Service 
and Financial Planning capital programme, are detailed in the table below: 

 
 

Cost (£’000s) Actual spend 
31 March 2020 

Approved 
allocations 

Construction estimate (including fees, s106s, and 
interest during construction) 

43,379 60,642 

Land value 3,785 3,785 

Total cost 47,164 64,427 

   

Source of Funds   

PWLB borrowing 43,379 60,642 

Capital receipt 3,785 3,785 

Total funding 47,164 64,427 

 Table 12: Costs and Funding Sources for the Housing Investment Programme 

 
 Nuplace operates in accordance with governance arrangements which allow for the allocation    

of capital to individual sites following the satisfaction of predetermined conditions, several of 
which relate to viability and the ability to repay interest on loans forwarded. Finance provide 
comprehensive support to individual business cases as they come forward for approval. To date 
ten sites have satisfied these conditions and capital totalling £64.4m has been allocated to these 
sites, which has been funded in accordance with the table above.  

 
A further allocation of £48m prudential borrowing has been requested in the Cabinet Reports 
dated 18th June 2020 and 5th November 2020 to support the next phase of development 
proposals. The estimated cashflow of which is: 

Financial Year Spend £’000s 

2021/22 17,400 

2022/23 22,100 

2023/24 8,500 

Total 48,000 

 Table 13: Anticipated spend profile for pipeline schemes 

 

Page 67



24 
 

As new sites come forward for approval, finance will support viability appraisals and ensure that 
the returns generated fulfil the Council’s objectives. A set of viability criteria has been developed, 
and refined as appropriate and presented to the HIP Board for approval, in consultation with the 
Section 151 Officer. Refinements in criteria reflect actual performance of the portfolio as well as 
Corporation Tax covenants and regulations which apply to the Company. 
 
The Council and the Company have engaged with consultants to ensure that the Company 
operates efficiently within Corporation Tax regulations. This has involved a complete analysis 
of Corporate Interest Rate Restrictions and associated legislation. 
 
In summary, the revised modelling assumptions are listed below:  

Modelling 
Parameter 

% Explanation 

Rent increase 1.1% per 
annum 

Due to the high starting rents for Nuplace properties (typically 10% higher 
than borough averages), the rental increase has been reduced to 1.1% from 
between 1.14% to 1.75% used on previous viability appraisals. This is 
further justified since long term historical data (2012-2016) shows that rents 
for 2, 3 and 4 bed properties within the Borough have, on average, 
increased at a rate of 1.2% per annum. Furthermore, actual evidence of rent 
increases across the existing Nuplace portfolio is in the region of 1.1% 
 

GDV increase 2.0 - 3.5% 
per 
annum 
 

HPI inflation has been assumed at between 2.0 - 3.5%. Whilst it is accepted 
that there are fluctuations in house prices, over the last 20 years, house 
prices in the Borough have increased by 9.9% per annum.  

Void rate 3.0% Current assumption is 3.0% used to reflect the mixed tenure of properties. 
Whilst voids are currently running lower than this level, this is reflective of 
the likely void rate over the 25 year term. 
 

Operating costs 13.92% This is in line with the renegotiated Housing Management Agreement.  
 

Reactive 
maintenance 

6.5% Maintenance costs have been refined to allow for both reactive and 
proactive maintenance following detailed work on asset replacement costs 
and life cycles. In line with the agreement of assumptions within the revised 
viability parameters, this rate has been phased as 3.5%, 4%, 4.5%, 5%, 6% 
and 6.5% in the first 6 years of operation. 
 

Sinking fund 8.5% The sinking fund provision represents a cash provision for proactive 
maintenance costs.  
 

Fixed cost 
allowance 

2% Fixed costs include an allowance for insurance costs and is comparable with 
actual costs being incurred. 
 

Corporation tax rate 19% An allowance has been made for 15% disallowed interest due to Advanced 
Thin Capitalisation. This will be assessed on a case by case viability basis. 
 

Interest rate on 
debt finance 

tba This is set as each tranche of debt funding is established. Interest rates are 
set according to the circumstances that exist at the time the loan is entered 
into, taking into account market rates and the EU reference rate for state aid 
purposes. The rate is agreed in consultation with the Councils s151 Officer. 
 

Table 14: Housing Investment Programme Modelling Assumptions  

 
The modelling assumptions, applied to new sites, result in the following current viability criteria: 

 Revised Hurdle Rate 

Net Rental yield (profit after increasing % reactive 
maintenance, tax thereon, and 8.5% deduction for proactive 
maintenance)  

5% 

IRR on equity 6% 

Return on GDV 12% 

Loan to Cost Must not exceed 80% 

Loan to Value Must not exceed 70% 

 Table 15: Housing Investment Programme viability criteria 

Page 68



25 
 

 
 In accordance with previous Business Cases, Nuplace continues to be funded by a mixture of 

debt and equity finance, such that each element of finance generates an acceptable return to 
the Council over the life of the investment, whilst having due regard to state aid requirements. 
Parameters for returns on equity finance for viability appraisals will be approved in consultation 
with the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 

 
 Additionally, the Council receive income from a range of services supplied to Nuplace, governed 

by the various management agreements. These services include housing management and 
development management services.  Income received over the 5 year period to 31 March 2020 
is summarised in the table below: 

 
 
 

£’000s Cumulative  
5 years 19/20 

Services income 1,796 

Interest income 4,876 

Total income 6,672 

  

PWLB cost of debt finance (short 
term cost of debt) 

(1,425) 

Other marginal Council costs (830) 

Net incremental Income 4,417 

 Table 16: Income to TWC to year end 2019/20 

 
 Services and interest income will continue to increase as further sites are brought forward for 

development and rental levels increase and debt is drawn down. 
 
 The Nuplace portfolio additionally experiences strong capital growth, through annual valuations 

being undertaken by professional valuers. The investment portfolio has experienced capital 
growth of 17% over cost of construction to the period ended 31 March 2020. 

 
 The Council’s debt funding to Nuplace is governed by a 30 year facility agreement, whereby 

interest on the debt is charged at a fixed rate of 5.29%, and an additional £5m, extension to this 
agreement charged at a fixed rate of 5.18%.These rates were set by reference to State Aid 
requirements and the level of collaterisation in the company.  

 
The further capital allocations requested of £48m will require additional debt finance of circa 
£36m to be forwarded to Nuplace. The interest rate to be charged on this debt finance will be 
calculated in line with agreed procedures.  Approval for the terms of this facilities agreement 
including the rate on debt finance   will be in consultation with the Council’s Section 151 Officer. 

 
 The Council’s interest charges are prudently calculated using current capital interest rates as 

agreed as part of the Budget Strategy.  For 2016/17 and 2017/18 these were, short term cost 
of borrowing rate of 1.75% falling to 0.64% in 18/19 and 1.14% beyond. Actual borrowing is 
undertaken as part of overall treasury management and the current strategy is for short term 
borrowing at rates around 0.35%. Finance will review viability appraisals to ensure that each 
additional site demonstrates that it delivers a return on both the debt and the equity finance 
forwarded. 

 
 The inclusion of any new sites within the Business Case will generate additional Council Tax 

and New Homes bonus as appropriate to the Council. This is forecast to have generated an 
additional £1.085m for the 5 years ended 31 March 2020, and will continue to rise as more sites 
are developed and units delivered. 

 
 
 

Page 69



26 
 

7.0 LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Legal advice continues to be provided in relation to both development and operational matters 
with there being legal representation at Project Team, Nuplace Director and HIP Board 
Meetings. There is a robust governance structure in place and legal advice and training has 
been provided to the Directors of Nuplace to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided. 

 
Legal will keep both the HIP Board and the Board of Directors of Nuplace fully abreast of any 
regulatory or policy changes of relevance which have implications for the Housing Investment 
Programme.   
 
Legal will continue to provide legal support to Nuplace in relation to Company secretarial duties 
i.e. filing at Companies House, and will provide advice and assistance to Nuplace in relation to 
Nuplace updating its Business Plan to demonstrate how they intend to respond to and deliver 
against the objectives contained herein. This updated plan will need to be submitted to and 
approved by the HIP Board and will act as a live document and be regularly reviewed by both 
Nuplace and the Council.  

 
Legal will provide advice and support on a case by case basis in relation to acquiring 
predetermined properties from developers to ensure that any legal requirements are complied 
with and the relevant contract is entered into. 
 
Legal advice is also provided on an individual site basis particularly regarding the satisfaction 
of conditions precedent to the acquisition of sites by Nuplace and any relevant property 
considerations. 
 

 
8.0    GOVERNANCE 

 
8.1  The ‘Teckal Exemption’, has been used as justification for the Council not needing to tender for 

a Company to deliver the HIP. Application of the Teckal exemption is reliant upon satisfying 
three conditions, all three of which have been and will continue to be satisfied during the 
establishment and the delivery of the Programme.  These include; 

a) the Council exercising control over Nuplace similar to that which it has over itself 
including having decisive influence over the strategic objectives and decisions of 
Nuplace i.e. being 100% owned by the Council with complete control over identity 
and appointment of Directors, having established a robust governance structure;  

b) Nuplace carries out an essential part (more than 80%) of its activities with the 
Council; and  

c) that there is no direct private capital participation in the company.        
 

8.2  The establishment of a robust governance structure is required to protect the Council’s 
investment, its Officers by way of Member support, and Nuplace’s Directors as far as possible 
from any personal liability. In addition and as highlighted above, robust governance is essential 
to satisfy a key condition of being able to establish Nuplace to deliver the Programme.  This 
governance structure and the governance procedures were established as part of the original 
Business Case and in the most part remain largely applicable. 

 
In 2017, approval was sought to grant further decision making delegation to the Chief Executive 
in consultation with the Board to order to enable the Housing Investment Programme and 
company to operate more commercially. These additional delegations were not considered to 
contravene the Teckal exemption in any way. Delegation to the Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Board has proven to be a successful way of managing the operations of the programme 
and the company robustly whilst accepting that the nature of the programme is such that 
decisions need to be made swiftly.  
 

Page 70



27 
 

The latest version of the terms of reference included at Appendix 2 were reviewed and approved 
by the HIP Board in June 2020 and reflect the appointment of new officers onto the Board and 
as Directors of Nuplace as invited attendees. These amendments were undertaken in response 
to recent appointments to, and structural changes within, the Senior Management Team and 
Cabinet.  
 
  

9.0 RISK 
 

The Programme Wide Risk Register has been reviewed in the context of the proposals 
contained within this report, with an updated copy included within Appendix 3.  
 
A number of risks have been removed from the risk register on the basis that they are no longer 
considered relevant since they relate to the establishment of the company which has now been 
concluded or are better captured in site specific risk registers which cover the pre-construction 
and construction phases.  
  
 

Appendix 1 – Cabinet Reports  

Housing Investment Programme Cabinet Report    25 April 2013 
Housing & Property Investment Programme Cabinet Report  24 July 2014 
Housing Investment Programme Full Council Report   11 September 2014 
Housing Investment Cabinet Report      8 January 2015 
HIP, Southwater Development Options Cabinet Report   19 March 2015 
Housing Investment Programme Update     25 March 2016 
Housing Investment Programme Update     29 June 2017 
Housing Investment Programme     12 July 2018 
Housing Investment Programme Update    2 January 2020 
Local Growth Fund - Stronger Communities    18 June 2020 
 

  

Page 71



28 
 

Appendix 2 – Housing Investment Programme Board Terms of Reference 

  

Page 72



HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME BOARD 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

1. Background 

 

1.1. Telford & Wrekin Council are focussed on proactively and positively building a long-
term future for the Borough. The focus is on economic growth and the Council is 
integral to achieving this growth by providing the right services and making the right 
investments.  
 

1.2 The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) is a strategic programme focussed on 
delivering a portfolio of properties for private and affordable rent, and in so doing 
seeking to; 

 Respond to the borough’s housing need for quality rental homes and places to 
live and supporting the Council’s ambitious growth agenda and major 
investment into the Borough; 

 Raise the standard of rental provision in the Borough, both in terms of the 
quality of the rental homes and the quality of the landlord service;  

 Regenerate brownfield and stalled sites. 

 Stimulate local economic growth through job creation during both the 
construction and operational phases of the Programme; 

 Protect Council jobs by utilising these roles in the development, management 
and maintenance of the portfolio of rental properties; and 

 Generate a long term income stream for the Council that can contribute towards 
the protection of frontline services otherwise affected by budgetary constraints;  

 
1.3 The Council established a Wholly Owned Company (WOC) to deliver the HIP, with 

Nuplace Ltd (Nuplace) becoming incorporated in April 2015.  
 

2. Membership & Decision Making 

 

2.1 Members of the Board will be: 
 

Members 

Cabinet Member for Economy, Housing, Transport and Infrastructure 

Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood, Commercial Services and Regeneration 

Chief Executive (Chair) 

Executive Director: Housing, Communities & Customer Services 

Director: Finance & Human Resources (Statutory Chief Financial Officer) 

Associate Director: Policy & Governance  

 
2.2 Only members of the Board will have the right to attend. However, other individuals 

may be invited to any meeting as and when appropriate. It is expected that at least 
one of the Directors of the Company will attend each meeting to provide updates as 
to progress, but will not take part in any decision-making of the Board. Members may 
nominate a relevant substitute if they are unavailable to attend a meeting.  

 
2.3 A minimum of four board members are required in order to provide a quorum for 

decision making purposes (at least one of whom must be the Chief Executive or 
Statutory Chief Finance Officer together with at least one elected Member of the 
Council).  

 

Page 73



2.4 The Board will be chaired by the Chief Executive. If the Chair is not present at any of 
the meetings of the Board then the remaining members shall elect one of themselves 
to chair the meeting.  

 
2.5 It is anticipated that formal voting will not be required and decisions will be required 

to be unanimous.  It may also be the case that decisions may be required during the 
periods intervening a formal Board meeting which may necessitate decisions being 
taken outside of a formal Board meeting.  Such decisions shall be equally as valid as 
any decision taken during a Board meeting, however, the quorum detailed above 
shall still apply and the decision shall be formally ratified and recorded at the 
subsequent Board meeting.      

 
2.6 The Chief Executive, in consultation with the Board, (and in particular the Statutory 

Chief Finance Officer) in relation to viability decisions) may approve, in accordance 
with the powers delegated to him by Cabinet, the matters identified at Section 4.0 of 
these Terms of Reference.  Should the Chief Executive not be present at any 
meeting then he delegates his decision-making to the Statutory Chief Finance 
Officer. 

 
3.  Frequency of Meetings  
 
3.1  The Board shall meet quarterly for approximately 1.5 hours. More frequent meetings 

shall be scheduled when appropriate.  
 
4. Purpose & Objectives/Role of the Board 
 
4.1  The Housing Investment Programme Board was established in order to: 

 Provide a robust governance structure and appropriate levels for decision-
making within the context of Cabinet and Council approvals 

 Engage with and obtain support from Senior Members and Officers in relation 
to the strategic direction of the HIP 

 Provide any approvals that were necessary to enable the programme to 
maintain momentum and meet critical programme timescales 

 Give direction to Nuplace and the HIP delivery team where appropriate 

 Approve the following, subject to these being in accordance with the Business 
Case, Nuplace’s Business Plan and providing they can be delivered within the 
Council’s approved level of investment:- 

 Viability: 

 Parameters against which the viability of individual sites will be assessed  

 Variations to these parameters where this will be of benefit to the overall 
programme. 

 Individual site viability appraisals 

 Commercial terms for funding (providing these are in accordance with the 
viability outcomes of the individual site appraisals), to include returns on equity 
invested on a project by project basis. 

 Changes to the loan agreement including adjustments to the onward lending 
rate to Nuplace, subject to any adjustments being State Aid compliant, and with 
due regard to the overall collaterisation of the Company. 

 The price for each piece of land transferred to Nuplace (to ensure best 
consideration is obtained)  

 The principal and terms associated with the acquisition of and development on 
third party land, both within and outside of the Borough, 

 The principal and terms associated with joint developments with third parties  

Page 74



 
 

Management 

 Use of Council resources to support Nuplace via the management agreements 
i.e. staff, IT, finance systems, accommodation  

 Agreeing commercial terms for management agreements  

 Agreeing terms for housing and operational management on specific sites (if 
not already covered by the overarching agreement)  

 Agreeing variations to the management agreements, provided that these are in 
accordance with the Business Case  

 Agreeing sensitive policy issues relating to the Project (e.g. rent setting, length 
of term, allocations, rental deposits, tenancy enforcement)  

 
Monitoring & Compliance of Nuplace Ltd 

 Agreeing any changes to Nuplace’s Business Plan (providing these are in 
accordance with the Business Case)  

 General guidance and strategic direction to Nuplace Directors  

 Attending the Annual General Meeting of Nuplace  

 Agreeing the appointment of External Auditors to Nuplace 

 Monitoring Nuplace’s performance against the Business Case and Business 
Plan and taking intervening measures in the event of non-performance  

 Monitoring compliance with conditions precedent contained within the Land 
Transfer Agreement  

 Monitoring compliance with conditions precedent contained within the Facilities 
Agreement  

 Receiving and considering reports from Nuplace including: 
 Quarterly reports on the progress of schemes against the approved 

Project Plan 
 Quarterly reports on Housing Management including monitoring of 

Key Performance Indicators identified within the Housing Management 
Agreement 

 Quarterly update on Management Accounts 
 
5. Accountability of the Board 
 
5.1 The Board is accountable to Cabinet in relation to matters described above (which 

are executive functions).  Should a decision be required which is not within these 
Terms of Reference this will be referred to Cabinet save for where that is a decision 
which is outside of the approved Budget and Policy Framework for the Council; in 
which case the matter shall be decided upon by Full Council.   

 
5.2 As part of its role, and in order to demonstrate the appropriate level of probity and 

oversight, the HIP Board shall produce reports to the Cabinet at least once per year, 
providing the information and recommendations (if required): 

 The performance of Nuplace and the Council’s investment,  

 Significant changes to the Business Case and/or Business Plan that have 
occurred during the preceding 12 months  

 A general update as to the HIP’s progress.    

 Proposals for future investment   
 
6. Review 

 
6.1 The composition and terms of reference of the Board will be reviewed by the Board 

every 12 months or as appropriate if more frequently.  

Page 75



 
 
 
 
7. Procedures  
 
7.1  An officer of the Council, appointed by the Chair, shall act as administrator for the 

Board and shall circulate an agenda, together with any supporting documentation at 
least 1 week prior to the Board meeting.  If, for reasons of urgency, this is not 
possible papers shall be circulated as soon as practicable.  

 
7.2 Minutes of the Board Meetings will be produced in draft within 2 weeks of the 

meeting and circulated to all members of the Board (whether they were in attendance 
or not).  Any proposed changes to the minutes must be identified by Members of the 
Board within a further 2 weeks following circulation.   

 
8. Approvals  
 
Approved by the Board on  

 

 

......................................................... 

David Sidaway – Chief Executive 

Chair   

 

Page 76



29 
 

Appendix 3 – Housing Management Agreement – Key Performance Indicators 

Housing KPIs Annual Target Performance for 
Year end 2019/20 

Level of rent collection  99.5% 99.8% 

Rent loss through bad debts  Less than1% nil 

Rent loss through voids  Less than 4% 2.17% 

Reservation turnaround time – from point of vacation 10 working days 24 days 

Void turnaround time (subject to there not being 
significant works required to the Dwelling) 

20 working days 31 days 

% of compliance with all statutory requirements / 
regulations as detailed within Schedule 1  

100% 100% 

 Category 1 - Emergency repairs to be attended to 
within 24 hours (including non-Working Days) e.g. 
major electrical fault or where there is a serious risk to 
tenant or property)  

100% 96.8%* 

 Category 2 - Urgent repairs to be attended to within 5 
Working Days (e.g., plumbing or roof leaks, heating 
breakdowns in winter where no other sources of heat 
are available) 

98.5% 95.5%* 

 Category 3 - General repairs to be attended to within 
16 Working Days (subject to tenant granting access) 

95% 81.1%* 

Category 4 - Repairs / service  attended to at the time 
arranged with the tenant (subject to tenant granting 
access) 

100% 100% 

Category 5 - Repairs works need to be carried out 
following the property becoming vacant and prior to the 
property becoming re- tenanted.  To be completed 
within 10 Working Days  

95% 97% 

Number of Disrepair Notices 0  

*impacted on by Coronavirus  
  

Page 77



30 
 

Appendix 4 – Pipeline Sites 

Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



P
age 81



TELFORD & WREKIN HOMES  

 

Proposals involve the acquisition of circa 100 vacant dwellings across 
the Borough including a range of property types and sizes. Properties 
will be refurbished and rented out by Nuplace under a new sub brand 
– Telford & Wrekin Homes. It is envisaged that acquisition will be 
undertaken over the next three years. A range of opportunities for 
acquisition are being explored including the purchase of a number of 
Wrekin Housing Group’s properties, previously intended for auction. 

It is envisaged these properties will be let at a range of rental levels 
including open market rent, affordable rent and a discounted rent 
linked to allocation policies for a range of client groups, subject to 
further business case development and viability testing.  

Objectives: 
 

 To further disseminate the good work of the Housing 
Investment Programme in raising standards in the private 
rented sector across the Borough through demonstrating high 
quality property and tenancy management on a broader 
geographic scale. 

 To bring empty properties are brought back into productive use 
and ensure that we are protecting and investing in our existing 
housing stock and making the BEST use of our existing homes 
and; 

 To provide housing options for a range of priority client groups, 
including for example care leavers, key workers as well as 
vulnerable people supported by Children’s and Adult’s 
Services. This directly links to objectives within the Council’s 
draft Housing Strategy which seeks to ensure that our most 
vulnerable people have access to safe and appropriate housing 
which enables them to live independently and maximise their 
potential. As such this housing will be linked to allocation 
polices for these key groups and be available on private rent 
and affordable basis as appropriate.  

 
 
 

 

Page 82

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/89+wedgewood+cres,+telford+tf1+5bu/@52.6983942,-2.4870582,3a,75y,81.83h,82.67t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1sml4v2cnqegpknizl71soma!2e0!6s%2f%2fgeo3.ggpht.com%2fcbk%3fpanoid%3dml4v2cnqegpknizl71soma%26output%3dthumbnail%26cb_client%3dsearch.gws-prod.gps%26thumb%3d2%26w%3d86%26h%3d86%26yaw%3d77.08679%26pitch%3d0%26thumbfov%3d100!7i13312!8i6656!4m5!3m4!1s0x487a8194d3e969b5:0xdee197b41816dc0e!8m2!3d52.6984479!4d-2.4867224
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/55+far+vallens,+hadley,+telford+tf1+5sf/@52.7022066,-2.4766725,3a,75y,12.28h,87.64t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1srfw7q1lrx1hc7vqh-bxosa!2e0!6s%2f%2fgeo0.ggpht.com%2fmaps%2fphotothumb%2ffd%2fv1%3fbpb%3dchekd3nlyxjjac5nd3mtchjvzbjlcjcjofkqnlmbekgrbfwesbc_8ssaiwsq04w4qhoaehgkfaosctnykds5gxpietmvxzjxwptuedcmegonxbdphxw-f4b-ghij_zp8nlmbekgryfq31vbtpokqcg1dt2kffb4xhv4abahwefy%26gl%3dgb!7i13312!8i6656!4m5!3m4!1s0x487a81b93490f239:0xcbf23fb7b1845504!8m2!3d52.7021917!4d-2.476653
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/27+sandiford+cres,+newport+tf10+7qw/@52.7670043,-2.3812257,3a,75y,297.49h,92.15t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1svivspal5cxyguhcx_obc7g!2e0!6s%2f%2fgeo3.ggpht.com%2fcbk%3fpanoid%3dvivspal5cxyguhcx_obc7g%26output%3dthumbnail%26cb_client%3dsearch.gws-prod.gps%26thumb%3d2%26w%3d86%26h%3d86%26yaw%3d314.2526%26pitch%3d0%26thumbfov%3d100!7i13312!8i6656!4m5!3m4!1s0x487a7ddf21063035:0xc4a8b68e22c2db90!8m2!3d52.767046!4d-2.381261


Page 83



P
age 84



FORMER CHARLTON SCHOOL SITE 

Outline planning consent has been granted for circa 200 new dwellings on this site (planning 

ref TWC-2018-0701). The site is to taken to the market by the Council's Estates & Investments 

Team in Autumn 2020, with options for a straight sale alongside an option to deliver circa 40 

new homes for Nuplace Ltd. An indicative housing mix has been established as set out below: 

Build 
General Needs Storey Number Standards 

2 bed 2 12 NOSS 

3 bed 2 16 NOSS 

4 bed 2 6 NOSS 

34 

Specialist 

2 bed 1 4 M4(2) 

2 bed 1 2 M4(3)a 

6 

In addition, and in accordance with the Council's commitment to become carbon neutral by 

2030, Nuplace are looking for their component of the development to incorporate carbon 

reduction measures through improvements to the fabric of the building and/or the incorporation 

of electric car charging points/PVs or other appropriate technology. 

Nuplace will engage directly with bidders through the marketing process with a view to 

securing delivery. 

Page 85



P
age 86



Page 87



Page 88



1

Electricity Sub Station

Gower Street

77

1

82

123

3

16

37

1

64

72

Playground

105

NEW STREET

Ash Grove

Urban Villas

19

5

1

2
Works

7

7

23

27
The Shrubbery

73

1

GOWER STREET

98

5
5 SMARTS WAY

Works

83

District Youth Club

147.5m

13
5

2

95

32

4

35

62

66

4

Trading Estate

Gothic Villa

6

3

7

115

1

1

125

DUKES WAY
25

Issues

ALBERT STREET

3

Glenhill Court

1

Posts

30

±

Title
The Gower 
Gower Street
St. Georges

Wellington Civic & Leisure Centre
Larkin Way
Wellington
Telford TF1 1LX

Date:Drawn by:Scale:
1:1,000

Estates & Investments
0 10 20 30 40 505

Metres

@A4 26/10/2020landdasc
Based on Ordanance Survey Mapping with the permission of 
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office Crown Copyright .  
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings.  
Borough of Telford & Wrekin Licence No. LA 10001 9692 - 2020

Page 89



MAIN ROAD, KETLEY BANK

Proposals involve the refurbishment of the former Abacus Nursery off Main Road Ketley 
Bank to create a number of residential units, alongside a new build element to deliver 
circa 15 new dwellings. The proposal will support reindentation of what is a historical 
Victorian building. 

Opportunities to provide new development fronting onto Main Road in lieu of development to 
the rear and the re-provision/ enhancement of new playing fields is also being considered. 

No layout plans have been developed at this stage with Nuplace looking to engage with a 
contractor to support feasibility and scheme development. 

Objectives 
• To preserve and enhance the historic character of the existing building.
• To deliver refurbished and new build dwellings to meet housing need - managed and

maintained by Nuplace.
• To develop a scheme which can lever in grant to support delivery.

Page 90



18a

11
4

Upper

Fairways
3 to 53

Path

2
Carno

Wyverne

Cornerways

Sandew

11

178.0m

1

18

175.6m

14

Community Centre

La Querida

GRANGE ROAD

10

29

KETLEY BANK

55

35

FIFTH AVENUE

28

1

MAIN ROAD

175.3m

Cycle Way

1 to 6

16

SADLERS

The Grange

El

Sta

House

Kalosorises

6

DU
KE

S H
ILL

Recreation Ground

Shelter

8
Sub

16

Wrekin View

Hill Top

Highway

Amroth 19

FOLD

5

20

30

Spion Cop

    

±

Title
MainRoad
Ketley
Telford

Wellington Civic & Leisure Centre
Larkin Way
Wellington
Telford TF1 1LX

Date:Drawn by:Scale:
1:1,250

Estates & Investments
0 20 40 60 80 10010

Metres

@A4 26/10/2020landdasc
Based on Ordanance Survey Mapping with the permission of 
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office Crown Copyright .  
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings.  
Borough of Telford & Wrekin Licence No. LA 10001 9692 - 2020

Page 91



Page 92



P
age 93



18 
 

Appendix 5: Housing Investment Programme - Risk Register 
 
Risk Matrix 
 
 

 
 

Risk Description Consequences Rating Response Actions Owner 
 Legal/Regulatory 

   
 

001 

Ultra Vires Council is acting outside of its 
powers in establishing the Company and/or 
implementing the project 

Cannot pursue 
initiative 

1 

Legal advice has been taken.  Powers to invest in and/or 
undertake commercial activities in function related powers are 
established.  Borrowing is via the General Fund.  Council will 
comply with prudential borrowing requirements.  Currently taking 
place. 

TWC 

002 

State Aid  - Challenge made by European 
Commission 

Legal 
implications 3 

Legal advice has been taken.  Rates will be on a full commercial 
basis.  Could also rely on the Services of General Economic 
Interest exemption for the affordable rent housing. 

TWC 

P
age 94



32 
 

003 
Necessary Consents - Secretary of State 
consent may be required for transfer of the 
land as ‘gratuitous benefit’. 

Programme 
delays 1 

All sites have and will continue to be sold to Nuplace based on 
open market valuations. 
 

TWC 

004 

Necessary Consents - Land transfer is not at 
the best consideration reasonably obtainable 

Legal 
implications, 
programme 
delays, cost 
implications 

1 

Valuations have been undertaken by an external RICS Surveyor 
using the Red Book. Land has been and will continue to be 
transferred at open market value. 
 

TWC 

005 

EU Procurement Challenge - A challenge is 
made that the project is not compliant with EU 
procurement requirements 

Legal 
implications, 
programme 
delays 

1 

The Teckal exemption is available in respect of transactions 
between the Council and the Company.  In addition, all 
development activity has been and will continue to be through 
competitively procured design and works contracts which are 
compliant with existing EU procurement regulations. 

TWC 

 Financial/Economic/Legislative 
   

 

006 

Accounting and Tax Treatment - The 
accounting and tax treatment set out in the 
Business Case is challenged 

Legal 
implications, 
programme 
delays, cost 
implications 

5 

External financial advice obtained and considered as part of the 
Business Case 
Ongoing advice on Corporation Tax sought in particular CIS 
clearance is sought and ATCA obtained 
 

TWC 

007 

Financial Model - The assumptions in the 
financial model are not robust or the financial 
model is flawed. 

Programme 
delays, cost 
implications 

5 

The Financial Model has been rigorously tested and 
assumptions are continuously challenged and refined based on 
operational information.  Robust monitoring of management 
accounts is performed to identify key business levers. 

TWC 

008 
Funding - The Council is unable to provide 
finance for the pipeline of projects identified. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

1 
Prudential borrowing was approved by Full Council in March 
2020 as part of the Regeneration & Investment Fund.    
 

TWC 

009 

PWLB Interest Rates - PWLB interest rates 
may increase such that the project is no longer 
financially viable 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

5 

The Council will manage its treasury requirements through its 
Treasury management function. Movements in interest rates and 
underlying market factors are monitored as part of this process.  
PWLB financing is being used. 

TWC 

010 

General and specific inflation  - If inflation 
assumptions are lower (in relation to income – 
rent and sales prices) or higher (in relation to 
costs – construction or management and 
maintenance costs) than Business Plan 
assumptions then viability of Company is 
reduced 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

5 

Construction costs provided on an open book basis and account 
for inflation to provide cost certainty.  
A rent setting and review policy has been established.  

TWC 

P
age 95



33 
 

011 

Changes in Legislation or Government Policy - 
Changes in legislation could have many risk 
impacts ranging right across the project and 
Company’s activities.  Such changes could 
affect any or all of the Business Plan 
assumptions and its development and 
operational activities i.e. changes to taxation, 
construction/building regulations, Government 
Policy which impact on rents and/or rent 
collection, right to buy. Changes could occur 
with regards to NHB and Council Tax, or 
changes to the Local Government Finance 
System. 

Legal, 
programme and 
cost 
implications 

2 

The changing legal and regulatory framework is under constant 
review with potential impacts assessed on an ongoing basis.   

TWC 

 Strategic Governance 
   

 

014 

Decision Making - Governance structures do 
not enable the project to be properly set up or 
delivered. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

1 

Governance structure has been approved by Cabinet. The 
programme is being delivered under this governance structure 
with no issues. 
 

TWC 

015 

Constitutional power of the Council to 
participate in external organisations such as 
the Company - The Council’s constitution may 
not permit participation in the Company. 

Legal and 
programme 
implications 

1 

Full Council approval has been obtained to participate in the 
project and the project is in its delivery phase. 

TWC 

016 

Decision Making - Conflicts of interest arise 
may arise between the Council and the 
Company and/or Company officers’ primary 
duties to the Company cause operational 
issues. 

Legal and 
programme 
implications 4 

Members and officers of the Council receive briefings from the 
Council’s legal team on how to manage such conflicts and 
duties. Formal Terms of Reference in place alongside robust 
governance procedures.  

TWC/Nu
place 

017 
Resources - The Council has inadequate 
resources to deliver the project. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

5 
Resources, have and will continue to be reviewed as the 
programme progresses. Additional capacity has been built in to 
support the growing operational element of the business.  

TWC 

018 

Delay during delivery - The project suffers 
delay during construction preventing the WOC 
from repaying its loan. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

5 

Sensitivities have been tested which show that the WOC could 
repay debt if it suffered a minor delay (+6 months) in the delivery 
of the project.  This forms part of the financial analysis. 

TWC 

 Political 
   

 

019 

Change in Government Policy - Support for 
the project may be eroded leading to 
difficulties in delivering to the Business Plan. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

1 

The three principal political parties are committed to housing 
development as part of the UK Growth Strategy.  The project is 
in its delivery stage. 

TWC 

020 
Change in Local Policies - As Above Programme 

and cost 
implications 

5 
A change in political administration or changes to local policies 
may affect the support for the project and affect the delivery TWC 

P
age 96



34 
 

021 

Loss of Stakeholder Support - Failure to 
provide adequate information/marketing could 
lead to poor public perception and take up of 
the homes, affecting viability. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Affiliation of Nuplace to the Council is proving positive with 
opportunities to emphasis this link having been implemented. 
Occupancy and pre lets off plan continue to be positive.  

TWC 

 Resources 
   

 

022 
Management and administration resources - 
The Council is unable to support the overall 
management of the Company. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

2 
Resource requirements continuously reviewed and have been 
accounted for in the revised HMA. Additional capacity has been 
built into restructures to support expansion of the programme.  

TWC 

023 
Development resources -The Council has 
inadequate housing development resources to 
support the Company. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 

2 
Resource requirements continuously reviewed and have been 
accounted for in the revised HMA. Additional capacity has been 
built into restructures to support expansion of the programme. 

Nuplace 

024 

Housing Management & Maintenance 
resources - The Council has inadequate 
housing management and maintenance 
resources to support the Company. 

Programme 
and cost 
implications 5 

Resource requirements continuously reviewed and have been 
accounted for in the revised HMA. Additional capacity has been 
built into restructures to support expansion of the programme. A 
planned maintenance programme has been established linked to 
condition surveys.   

Nuplace 

 Operational Management 
   

 

025 

Inability to find tenants and let properties 
leading to loss of income and costs of securing 
properties whilst empty. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Properties continuing to let well off plan. Void rates running at 
lower than modelled assumptions.  

Nuplace 

026 
Initial Rental Values - Initial rental values are 
lower than forecast. 

Cost 
implications 3 

Initial rental values are currently in line with levels assumed at 
viability stage.  Nuplace 

027 

Rent & Service Charge Collection - Failure to 
collect all legally recoverable monies. 

Legal and cost 
implications 

2 

The rent collection will be managed by the Council, via Nuplace, 
who have experience in collection of commercial rents. The 
lettings policy requires the use of direct debits and rental 
deposits/ credit checks prior to the letting of property. 

Nuplace 

028 

Failure to comply with rental deposit scheme 
requirements - Failure to comply means that 
rent may not be collectable and/or possession 
cannot be obtained.  The court can also levy 
fines. 

Legal and cost 
implications 

2 

Suitable procedures are in place to ensure that necessary 
notification requirements are provided to tenants in a timely 
fashion. Nuplace 

029 
Void Management - Failure to make available 
for re-letting or to re-let in timescale. 

Cost 
implications 

3 
Effective processes are in place to manage voids and bad debts.  

Nuplace 

030 

Repairs & Maintenance - Costs are not in line 
with Business Plan projections and/or quality 
is poor. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Assumptions are continuously tested and refined. Currently R&M 
costs are below projected levels 

Nuplace 

P
age 97



35 
 

031 

Liability under section 11 Landlord and Tenant 
Act 1985 (disrepair notices), section 82 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 (statutory 
nuisance) and failure to undertake gas, 
electrical or fire safety checks - Court action, 
fines and compensation to tenants may be 
available if the Company is in breach. 

Legal and cost 
implications 

2 

Inspection and testing procedures are in place linked to the 
Council’s P2 system and ensure prompt responses to repair 
requests.   

Nuplace 

032 

Tenancy Management - Costs are not in line 
with Business Plan projections and/or quality 
is poor. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

The Council and Nuplace review the management arrangements 
and costs on a regular basis. Requirements and associated 
charges are established within the HMA updated in 2020.  Nuplace 

033 

Tenancy Management 
Tenant damage - Cost of tenant damage in 
excess of that provided for in repairs and 
maintenance budget.  Cost generally not 
covered by insurance. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Recharge policies and rental deposits mitigate this risk as do 
tenancy enforcement procedures. 

Nuplace 

034 

Damage to dwellings is caused by usual 
commercial risks - Material damage to 
dwellings and consequent loss of rent. 
 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Property owners and loss of rent insurance in place although 
Nuplace would still be exposed to uninsured excesses. 

Nuplace 

035 

Damage to dwellings are caused by 
uninsurable risks (e.g. flood or acts of 
terrorism) - Material damage to dwellings and 
consequent loss of rent. 

Cost 
implications 

3 

Insurance is unavailable.  Flood risks have and will continue to 
be investigated as part of the design and planning process and 
design will mitigate potential risk.  Consequences of terrorism 
are unlikely to affect more than a few dwellings. 
 

Nuplace 

036 

Debt Repayment - Company fails to repay 
debt and/or deliver a return to the Council 

Legal and cost 
implications 

3 

The Company’s Business Plan is be regularly monitored and 
reviewed. 
The Council will have security over the Company’s assets and 
step in rights. 

TWC/ 
Nuplace 

 

P
age 98



 

TELFORD & WREKIN COUNCIL 
 
CABINET                               5 NOVEMBER 2020 
FULL COUNCIL                  26 NOVEMBER 2020 
  
GET BUILDING FUND - NEW COLLEGE, WELLINGTON 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY & INVESTMENT  
 
LEAD CABINET MEMBER – CLLR DAVID WRIGHT, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
ECONOMY, HOUSING, TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE          

 
 
 
PART A – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
1.0 SUMMARY OF MAIN PROPSALS 
 
1.1       In June 2020, the Council was made aware of grant funding available through the ‘Get 

Building Fund’ from MHCLG to support local recovery from Covid-19, administered by 

the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).   

 

1.2     In response to this the LEP launched a call for eligible capital projects, involving a 

rigorous selection process including the submission of business cases within a very 

short timescale.  

 

1.3     Timescales are driven by the requirement to spend the grant by end of March 2022 (with 

60% to be spent by the end of 2021), with the identified projects needing to be delivered 

in their entirety, with associated outputs realised, by the end of March 2025.  

 

1.4     The Council’s proposal for New College and our partner’s proposal was approved for 

funding, subject to finalising a formal Funding Agreement and MHCLG approval, by the 

LEP Board on 14 July 2020.   

 

1.5    The grant award under the Get Building Fund will support the delivery of the 

development proposals at the New College site.  The Report seeks approval to the 

formal acceptance of the grant award, entering into a back to back Funding Agreement 

with the delivery partner, the tender and procurement of a contractor, the sale of land 

and notes that it may be necessary to use compulsory purchase powers. 

 

1.6       The impact of the coronavirus pandemic is significant for all the Borough’s communities 

and businesses.  This development will ultimately provide an economic stimulus 

supporting the delivery of new homes and new jobs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 6



 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 

That Cabinet recommends that Full Council approves the formal acceptance 
of the Get Building Fund award, appropriate changes to the capital programme 
as set out in para 6.2, and the entering into a back to back Funding Agreement 
with the delivery partner. 
 
That, subject to Full Council approval of 2.1 above, Cabinet approves the 
tender and procurement of a contractor for the delivery of the development 
proposals as detailed in this report.  
 
That Cabinet approves the sale of land at New College as set out in para 5.6 of 
the Report  
 
That Full Council approves the entering into of all necessary legal agreements 
to enable this programme to proceed with delegated authority granted to 
Director of Prosperity & Investment in consultation with the Cabinet member 
for Economy, Housing, Transport & Infrastructure 

 
 
3.0  SUMMARY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

 

COMMUNITY 
IMPACT 

Do these proposals contribute to specific Priority Plan objective(s)? 

Yes Regenerate those neighbourhoods in need and work to 
ensure that local people have access to suitable housing 

Will the proposals impact on specific groups of people? 

Yes In addition to meeting general housing need, the delivery of 
accessible and adaptable properties will increase the 
availability of high-quality housing within the Borough for 
people with mobility issues. 

TARGET 
COMPLETION/ 
DELIVERY DATE 

Local Growth Fund (Get Building) grant needs to be expended by 
end March 2022 with projects delivered in their entirety by end March 
2025.   

FINANCIAL / VALUE 
FOR MONEY 
IMPACT 

Yes The Council has been awarded £2.38m grant through the 
Get Building Fund (allocated from Local Growth Funding) 
which, as detailed in this report will be used to support the 
second stage of the Stronger Communities Programme at 
New College, Wellington. 60% of the grant must be spent 
and defrayed by 31 March 2021, with the remainder to be 
spent by 31 March 2022. Failure to meet this requirement 
may result in grant clawback. 
The bid additionally identifies £18.62m of match funding 
which must be spent by the delivery partner (Wrekin 
Housing Group (WHG)). Back to back agreements with 
WHG will ensure that the financial risk of non-delivery is 
addressed. 
The deliverability of the Nuplace proposals detailed in this 
report are subject to a separate Cabinet Report dated 5th 
November 2020 seeking funding from the Councils 
approved £60m Regeneration and Investment Fund. 
Capital allocations will be included in a future Financial 
Monitoring report once they are established following the 

Page 100



outcome of the preferred procurement exercise noted in 
Section 6.2. 
Allocations will include spend which will initially be incurred 
by the Council and then reimbursed by WHG. 
 
 
DR 21/9/20 
 
 

LEGAL ISSUES Yes The Council has the necessary powers to undertake the 
activities identified in this report.  Legal advice was provided 
in relation to the grant application. Ongoing legal advice will 
be provided in relation to all projects undertaken as part of 
the Get Building Fund and Stronger Communities 
programme.       
 
In the disposal of any land the Council has a statutory duty 
to obtain best consideration and must also follow any 
applicable procurement requirements when awarding any 
contracts.  In addition State Aid evaluation must be 
undertaken to ensure that no unlawful State Aid is provided. 
 
An Agreement mirroring the terms of the Funding Fgreement 
between the Council and the LEP will be executed with the 
delivery partner simultaneously with the Funding Agreement 
to ensure that any risk of the delivery partner failing to 
deliver is mitigated as much as possible. 
 
It may be necessary for the Council to assist the delivery 
partner by utilising its powers of Compulsory Purchase.  
Should this be required and considered appropriate a full 
and detailed report will be prepared for the decision-maker. 
 
EH 1.10.20 
 

OTHER IMPACTS, 
RISKS & 
OPPORTUNITIES 

Yes A comprehensive risk assessment has been undertaken as 
part of the preparation of the Business Case submission to 
the LEP. A risk register will be maintained and updated as 
the programme progresses and risks managed accordingly.  
 
The most significant risk relates to the Council’s ability to 
ensure the delivery partner meets the obligations within the 
Funding Agreement between the Council and the LEP.  
However, the proposed back to back Agreement will reduce 
this risk with the Council retaining control over the delivery 
programme for New College. 
 
Robust programmes are in place to secure delivery and 
these will be monitored by the Place Board, which will 
provide governance in relation to the programme.  The 
impact of the delay in confirmation of Homes England 
overarching grant allocation may impact across the delivery 
of the LEP’s whole programme and is anticipated to be 
confirmed in late 2020. 
 

Page 101



The impact of the current coronavirus pandemic is 
significant across all our communities and businesses.  The 
Stronger Communities Programme will provide a market 
stimulus supporting the continued delivery of new housing 
and the regeneration of key communities. 

IMPACT ON 
SPECIFIC WARDS 

No Investment is intended to have borough wide economic and 
regeneration benefits 

 
PART B – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
4.0 INFORMATION 
 
4.1 The Local Growth Fund (LGF) is government funding awarded to LEPs for projects that 

benefit the local area and economy. On 10 June 2020 the Council was alerted by the 
Marches LEP to the fact that funding had been made available by MHCLG for 
exceptional shovel ready projects able to support local recovery from Covid-19 including 
those supported through existing local growth programmes.  Grant was available to 
support eligible projects that could commit to expenditure by end March 2022 with a 60% 
commitment by March 2021. 

 
4.2 A Marches wide project call was announced with project proposals submitted to the LEP 

by 18 June 2020. Expressions of interest were required to outline the grant funding 
requirement, match funding element and outputs delivered as well as demonstrate a 
strategic fit with the Marches LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) along with 
deliverability within the programme constraints.  

 
4.3 Telford & Wrekin submitted two project proposals by the deadline. Following initial 

feedback from the LEP that one proposal had been shortlisted, supplementary 
information was provided to support an updated bid in early July, seeking £2.38m of 
grant funding.  

 
4.4      The project proposal is the second phase of the New College element of a wider   

Stronger Communities programme which as well as being closely aligned to objectives 
of the Marches SEP; to be an inclusive place that enables residents from all communities 
to thrive and develop, also directly reflects objectives set out in the Council’s vision of 
‘Protect, Care and Invest to create a better borough’.  The ability to draw down this 
second grant award unlocks a stalled site in third party ownership, a key driver of the 
Get Building Fund, which in turn supports the delivery of further residential units at New 
College delivering circa 110 new homes across both sites and a range of tenures 
including: 
 

 Age specific housing supporting the move of older people into suitable housing, 
close to amenities allowing them to remain living independently for longer. This 
provision will directly respond to housing need identified as part of the emerging 
Specialist & Supported Housing Strategy.  

 Housing for affordable rent to improve access to good quality housing for people 
on lower incomes. 

 Housing for private rent, delivered by the Council’s wholly owned company, 
Nuplace Ltd.  

 
4.6 In order to realise these outcomes, grant funding will be used to: 
 

 Address abnormal development costs associated with the brownfield nature of 
the sites including demolition, site clearance, service disconnections and 
remediation. 

 Support viability associated with low land values. 

Page 102



 Deliver key infrastructure including reconfigured highway access, pedestrian 

links, infrastructure and utility upgrades. 

 Address the requirements of Sport England associated with the relocation of 
sports pitches and the provision of community facilities. 

 
4.7  The Business Case for the Get Building Fund of £2.38M was approved by the LEP Board 

on 14 July 2020 subject to a Funding Agreement between TWC and Shropshire Council, 
as the Accountable Body for the LEP. The match funding for this grant will be met in full 
by the Council’s delivery partner.  

 
5.0 REPORT DETAIL  
 
5.1 Preliminary work at New College funded through the earlier Stronger Communities Grant 

award will leave the site cleared with enabling works complete.  Through discussions 
with Wrekin Housing Group (WHG) an opportunity was identified to widen the New 
College proposals through the unlocking of additional  WHG  redevelopment proposals 
within  Wellington together with improved pedestrian linkages into Wellington Town 
Centre.  The Get Building Fund has been secured by the Council on the basis of 
supporting both developments which are linked in their delivery proposals and levers in 
the additional financial resources to support the comprehensive masterplanning and 
redevelopment of the former New College site.   

 
5.2 The WHG proposal is the replacement of outdated accommodation that  no longer meets 

housing need.  The gap funding is needed to support demolition and clearance, land 
assembly and enabling works. This proposal would deliver around 70 new general needs 
and affordable units for rent, supporting the move of older people into suitable housing.  
The WHG proposal will be led directly by them and they  will provide the match funding 
required to support the LEP grant award.  It’s anticipated that circa £1.5M of the grant 
award will be allocated to support the development subject to finalising WHG’s delivery 
costs. 

 
5.3 The WHG redevelopment proposals require the purchase of a number of  properties 

previously acquired under ‘right to buy’.  Discussions are at an advanced stage subject 
to securing the funding required to support the abnormal costs of the redevelopment 
proposals.  The Council has been approached by WHG for support with the use of 
compulsory purchase powers should the negotiations not conclude on the remaining 
properties.  This report notes that the use of compulsory purchase powers may be 
necessary in order to assist WHG in bringing these discussions to a conclusion to enable 
the necessary outputs to be met.   

 
5.4 The WHG proposals are linked to the opportunity to bring forward a WHG development 

at New College comprising circa 64 apartments within an ‘Extra Care’ environment and 
10 bungalows. A site wide master plan has been developed for New College which also 
shows a development proposal for Nuplace Ltd for 21 new homes for market rent.   The 
deliverability of the Nuplace proposals are subject to a separate  Cabinet report to be 
considered on 5th November 2020 seeking funding from the Councils approved £60M 
Regeneration and Investment Fund. 

 
5.5 In order to maintain control over the delivery programme of the New College proposals 

it’s the intention that the Council (through BiT) will be appointed to act as employer’s 
agent for the WHG and Nuplace residential dwellings, managing the tender process and 
the delivery of both projects. The Council intends to tender and procure the contractor 
for the delivery of the development proposals at New College subject to the necessary 
contractual arrangements being in place with both parties.  Wherever possible works will 
be procured through frameworks to speed up the delivery process. The Council already 

Page 103



use a number of suitable frameworks for the procurement of professional and 
development services. 

 
5.6 Openly marketing and disposing of the New College site has been discounted as in doing 

this the Council will lose control over what is being delivered.  In order to retain control 
over the delivery of New College and the wider masterplanning of the site, the Council 
will retain its freehold ownership until satisfied the proposed developments are 
proceeding. Approval is sought to the sale of land at New College, on terms to be agreed 
between parties, with delegated authority to complete all legal agreements relating to a 
sale granted to the Director of Prosperity & Investment in consultation with the Cabinet 
member for Economy, Housing, Transport & Infrastructure. 

 
5.7 Its anticipated that £880k of the grant award will be allocated to support the delivery of 

the Councils enabling works at New College with match funding from WHG.  The fund 
will be used to deliver site wide masterplanning, upgraded pedestrian links, utility works 
and addressing the requirements of Sport England associated with the relocation of 
sports pitches and the provision of community facilities. 

 
5.8 Projects awarded a grant under the Get Building Fund are required to deliver within  an 

extremely challenging timescale as intervention is designed to react to Covid-19, 

accelerate delivery and unlock stalled states.  A number of legal documents will need 

to be in place to manage the delivery of the construction contract at New College, the 

sale of land to both Nuplace Ltd and WHG, the Funding agreement with the LEP and 

back to back Agreements with WHG. Approval is sought to enter into all the necessary 

legal agreements to enable the LEP grant to be drawn down and the development 

proposals to proceed with delegated authority granted to Associate Director: Policy & 

Governance in consultation with the Cabinet member for Economy, Housing, Transport 

& Infrastructure. 

 
6.0 FINANCE  
 
6.1 Delivery of this element of the Stronger Communities programme will be funded by the 

Get Building Fund award of £2.38M with match funding of £18.62M met in full from the 
WHG.   Whilst the Council will be required to enter into the Funding Agreement with the 
LEP, a concurrent reciprocal Funding Agreement will be entered into with WHG to 
ensure the Council is protected in its commitment to spend profile and the delivery of 
contractual outputs.  

 
6.2  The optimal delivery mechanism proposed for the New College site, where BiT act as 

employers agent for both WHG and Nuplace, will result in approximately £14m of 
additional capital expenditure being incurred by TWC, but fully funded by WHG.   The 
appropriate expenditure and funding allocations will be added to the capital programme 
when the outcomes of the tender process are finalised.  

 
6.3 The programme approach managed by the Council incorporating both elements of this 

project will ensure the delivery of positive outcomes to communities across the Borough.  
At the same time this will enable management of the grant and match funding flexibly to 
ensure that the challenging delivery timescales of the Get Building Fund are adhered to. 
 

Report prepared by: 
Dawn Toy, Service Delivery Manager, Regeneration & Investment 
 
 
 

Page 104



New College – Indicative Masterplan 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Financial Management Report 2020/21
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	5 Housing Investment Programme - Business Case for Investment
	Housing Investment Programme - Business Case November 2020
	Binder2
	Housing Investment Programme - Business Case November 2020
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites (1)
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_01
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_02
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_03
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_05
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_06
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_07
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_08
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_09
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_10
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_12
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_14
	Appendix 4 - Pipeline Sites_Page_15

	HIP Board Terms of Reference  - Signed
	Housing Investment Programme - Business Case November 2020
	Site Overview - Telford & Wrekin Homes

	Main Road, Ketley
	The Gower, St.Georges

	HIP Board Terms of Reference August 2020 - FINALv1


	6 Get Building Fund - Stronger Communities - New College, Wellington



